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THE YEAR’S HIGHLIGHTS | KEERE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars except number of

shares issued, shareholders and personnel)

Turnover ($'000)

Loss for the year ($'000)

Loss per share - Basic (cents)

Taxes paid, including beer tax ($'000)
Taxes paid per share (cents)

Fixed assets ($'000)

Net worth ($'000)

Salaries, wages and other benefits ($'000)

Number of shares issued

Number of shareholders

Number of personnel
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2008

753,375

(256,026)

(69)

102,485

27

1,379,561

1,495,952

91,656

373,570,560

2,253

766

2007

754,833

(260,294)

(70)

140,831

38

1,496,910

1,754,463

105,510

373,570,560

2,290
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ETREHRES

Ramon S. Ang &Rz
Chairman & &

To Our Shareholders,

The year 2008 proved to be a challenging year for San Miguel Brewery
Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “"Group”). The
severe weather conditions in South China, higher raw material costs and
the escalation of the global financial crisis in the last quarter of 2008 were
all factors that affected the Group’s financial results.

Amid these difficult conditions, the Company managed to turn in relatively
steady results. Consolidated turnover of the Group remained stable at
HK$753 million (2007: HK$755 million). Gross profit increased from HK$401
million in 2007 to HK$427 million in 2008. Gross profit margin also increased
from 53.1% in 2007 to 56.7% in 2008.

The Company’s consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders
decreased from HK$262.4 million to HK$257.8 million. In 2007, this included
impairment loss and one-time restructuring costs of our Hong Kong
operations, net of tax effect, of HK$238.8 million and HK$20.8 million
respectively, while this year included impairment loss of South China
operations, net of tax effect, of HK$230.0 million. Without the impairment
loss and restructuring costs, the Company's consolidated loss attributable
to equity shareholders for 2008 would have been HK$27.8 million compared
to HK$2.8 million in 2007.

Net cash balances at 31 December 2008 amounted to HK$160.3 million
(2007: HK$271.1 million). Total net assets maintained at HK$1,496.0 million
(2007: HK$1,754.5 million) together with a low debt-to-equity ratio of 0.12
(2007: 0.11) and current ratio of 1.2 times (2007: 1.6 times).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Directors have resolved that no dividends will be declared for 2008.

HONG KONG OPERATIONS

February 2008 saw the abolition of the excise duty on beer and wine by
the Hong Kong Government. As savings were passed on in full to
wholesalers and retailers, the Company did not benefit from this exemption
directly. The Company welcomed the government’s move to eliminate beer
duty, seeing it as positive for the total industry in the long run.

Duties exemption on wine, however, resulted to the growth in wine
consumption. Despite the challenges posed by the wine sector to the
alcohol beverage market, beer import volume in 2008 grew by 3.9% over
the previous year, reversing the declining trend in industry volumes.
Volumes are now back to 2002 levels.

Aligned with industry performance, the Company’s Hong Kong sales volume
increased by 4.2% year on year. The growth was seen across all brands
with our higher-priced brands registering the highest growth rate.

The Company continued to be the No. 1 beer company in Hong Kong with
our flagship brand San Miguel at the forefront. This is a result of our
commitment to deliver to our customers a portfolio of brands
corresponding to their business needs and to provide high levels of service
efficiency. We were also focused on making all our beer brands more
attractive, available and relevant to our consumers.

We successfully defended our position amid challenges from our
competitors with a wide range of strategic programs aimed at strengthening
and building San Miguel’s brand equity and reinforcing its bond with
customers and consumers. A variety of local promotions, events and
sponsorship programs were implemented to strengthen and nurture our
brand in a lasting and meaningful way.

The Company started the year with the successful staging of the San Miguel
“WildDayOut Grand Show" at POP TV Arena in West Kowloon. The 9-hour
music marathon concert also paved the way for a series of bar shows and
promotion programs aimed at strengthening San Miguel’s connection to
young adults.

The Company continued to air the successful television commercial “Hero”
showcasing San Miguel endorser Jet Li. Complementing the ad was the
Company's “I Like” Taste Test Challenge launched in November 2008 in
pubs and restaurants. The campaign results validated consumer preference

for the award-winning taste of San Miguel.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

HONG KONG OPERATIONS (Continued)

The launch of the new San Miguel Draught Beer imported from the
Philippines in December 2007 proved to be a valuable addition to the
brand’s portfolio as it continued to fortify our presence in higher-end bars,
pubs and restaurants. By the end of 2008, there were already some 200
outlets in the market serving this new product.

All these programs and activities, combined with an emphasis on improved
execution and cost management will provide our Company the foundation
to maintain market leadership in Hong Kong.

SOUTH CHINA OPERATIONS

The Group’s South China operations had to contend with a number of
external factors which weighed down on its 2008 results.

Our sales in the region experienced immediate setback at the start of the
year as China faced the worst snowstorm to hit the mainland in the last
fifty years. Food prices soared to double digit levels, constraining the
disposable incomes of most households. While the financial crisis may
have been most apparent in the last quarter of 2008, the slowdown in
exports and increased operating costs in the region forced a number of
factories to close down during the year.

In view of the difficult market conditions, competition has intensified as
beer companies scrambled to grab a bigger share in a contracting market.
In light of this, the Group invested a lot of effort to protect our position in
the market.

Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited’s ("GSMB's”) total San
Miguel sales declined versus the previous year despite valiant efforts from
the people in the organization to increase sales and grab volume from
competitors. Nevertheless, our efforts were not in vain as these contributed
valuable gains to San Miguel’s brand equity as evidenced by various
researches conducted. The aggressive penetration and promotion activities
also allowed San Miguel to gain significant in-roads in the retail chains.

Dragon brand, the main volume generating brand of San Miguel
(Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited (“SMGB"), turned in volumes that
were lower than the previous year. Dragon Beer was most affected by the
economic downturn as its consumer base was mainly employees in the
factory areas of Foshan. The brand also had to contend with counterfeit
products taking advantage of its popularity, reputation and distribution
reach. The Group has invested a significant amount of resources to manage
this threat to the brand, and has been fairly successful in controlling the
influx of these counterfeit products into our markets.

ETREHRES

FEERE@®

“EELF+ AR EFNIEREEAONE
JBE - FENNSR T RS AUEE B
ERMERE  BHERREASTHEEEDN
KB - BEZZTZTN\FR mHLEHEALY
200fEE F R EHER

FIAELIRE MES - BN LERMROERZ
TBRESKAR - BARBREEEMIHEE
ML FT GF B

ErREK
AEBWEREBDE T —RINRAE - =

BRESRAHERFINTEES T ATHK
RBRENSAMERNEE - emERATEE
I8 - AB(EAER D FKEEH A] B A WA KR o
TRERE ST N\FENFHANE - £A
PR R b 18 AR 2 PR _ERRABE BR ) TR F
MR -

EHRANTHIRE - REEAREZRENT
LREFEANMSEARSHFARE - B
It ARERBERBADRFRMETH LA
ML

HARNA—RETEHEHFLLP - EINHE
RFERHE - BMNENRBEFR AR (TEMNE
N BEBENREHEDREF K - B3]
NS HIRERE - TRNTISAEERT
ENmEEERRINE - ERWHHLER
B MEERSESENETEEHNHERE
mISEELER -

BEEmE - (EREN (BR) EERAR (T4E
NERDWEIEHENRR  HEREF TK -
EEAHERTIERFILIHRNES - KK
TRBREXETRWIHE - RREEINEE
EFNAERTRE  EERDHEESN - K&
BIRMAEERREIRELE mENEE - I
EREHIBREERERATS T EEUS —EX
e



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

SOUTH CHINA OPERATIONS (Continued)

To further complement our efforts to safeguard the Dragon Brand, efforts
were also made to enhance Dragon brand’s competitive edge. Dragon Draft,
a new and premium variant, was launched to improve brand image and
enhance total portfolio mix. A new campaign composed of two fifteen-
second television commercials entitled “Bar” and “Pool” was launched in
August to sustain the brand'’s popularity.

The completion of SMGB's Phase 1 expansion project has also allowed the
Group to toll-manufacture Guang's Pineapple Beer (“GPA”), paving the way
for GSMB to re-launch GPA last July.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Similar to past years, the Company continues to sponsor and participate
in various local community events and make regular donations to charities
and non-profit organizations.

The Company is also committed to protecting the environment where it
operates and ensuring that various environmental standards set by
government are met or exceeded.

HUMAN RESOURCES

People are our most important asset and are critical to the long term
performance of the Company in achieving its objective in a highly
competitive marketplace. As such, we continue to invest in our people
and ensure that they receive appropriate training and support from the
Company and from external training and development organizations.

The Company continues to offer competitive remuneration packages
commensurate with market standards and provides attractive fringe
benefits, including medical and insurance coverage and retirement
packages to all employees.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company continued to apply the principles of the Code Provisions
under the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited throughout the year ended 31 December 2008 except
for the Code Provision A.4.1. Code Provision A.4.1 sets out that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. At present, all of the non-executive directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and re-election at the Annual General
Meeting under the Company'’s Articles of Association. Details of compliance
are set out in the Company’s Annual Report’s Corporate Governance
section.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

DIRECTORS

Mr. Francis H. Jardeleza and Mr. Ferdinand K. Constantino resigned from
the Board since we published our interim report on 12 September 2008.
We thank Mr. Jardeleza and Mr. Constantino for their contributions to the
Group over the past years.

With the departure of Mr. Francis H. Jardeleza and Mr. Ferdinand K.
Constantino, Mr. Thelmo Luis O. Cunanan Jr. and Mr. Romulo L. Neri were
appointed on 28 November 2008 and 24 April 2009 respectively.

FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES
The objectives of the Company for the year 2009 are:

o In Hong Kong, to continue to improve profitability, increase our
market share and reinforce the market leadership of San Miguel.

o In South China, to continue to strengthen San Miguel brand equity
and consolidate the growth of Dragon brand.

Looking ahead, we are cautious, but nevertheless optimistic that the
operating environment in Hong Kong and South China will be positive in
the coming year. We will remain committed to maximising shareholder
value and to strengthening our brands. We will also maintain disciplined
cost control by achieving higher cost-efficiencies across the board,
particularly in the areas of production and distribution.

In conclusion, we wish to thank the Board of Directors for their wise counsel
and guidance. We also wish to thank our shareholders, customers and

business partners for their continued support. Lastly thank you to all our
employees for their loyalty, dedication and hard work.

a

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman

29 April 2009
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To be presented at the Forty-sixth Annual General Meeting of shareholders
to be held at Island Ballroom, Level 5, Island Shangri-La Hong Kong, Two
Pacific Place, Supreme Court Road, Central, Hong Kong on Tuesday, 16 June
2009 at 3:00 p.m..

The directors submit herewith their Annual Report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and
principal place of business at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit,
Siu Lek Yuen, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and distribution
of bottled, canned and draught beers. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements.

The segment analysis of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the financial year is set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable
to the major customers and suppliers, respectively, during the year is as
follows:

The largest customer SN

Five largest customers in aggregate BhAEP &G
The largest supplier =AM ERE

Five largest suppliers in aggregate BRAHEREEE

One of the five largest suppliers was San Miguel Corporation (“SMC"), the
ultimate holding company of the Company, and its associates (collectively
the “San Miguel Group”) in which Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Faustino F. Galang,
Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Ms. Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia, Mr. Ferdinand
K. Constantino, Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago and Mr. Peter K. Y. Tam have
beneficial interests to the extent that they either have equity interests in
or are directors and/or officers of the San Miguel Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their associates, or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major customers or suppliers.
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HAREH
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18.2%
49.5%
7.6%
19.7%
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The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at that date are set out on
pages 57 to 123 of the financial statements.

Loss for the year of HK$256,026,000 (2007: HK$260,294,000) has been
transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in note
28 to the financial statements.

The directors have resolved that no final dividend be declared for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$59,000 (2007: HK$416,000).

The Group acquired fixed assets in the amount of HK$172,057,000 (2007:
HK$60,313,000) during the year. Details of these acquisitions and other
movements in fixed assets are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 28 to the
financial statements. There were no movements during the year.

The directors of the Company as at the date of this Annual Report are set
out on page 3 of the Annual Report.

With the exception of Mr. Cheung Yuen Tak, Ms. Jesusa Victoria Hernandez-
Bautista and Mr. Thelmo Luis O. Cunanan Jr. who were appointed as
directors during the year, all of the directors served as such for the full
year.

Mr. lwan David Nevyn Evans and Mr. Francis H. Jardeleza resigned as
directors during 2008.

Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Faustino F. Galang, Mr. Peter K. Y. Tam and Mr. Carlos
Antonio M. Berba retire by rotation in accordance with Article 105 of the
Company’s Articles of Association at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, Mr. Ferdinand K. Constantino
resigned as director and Mr. Romulo L. Neri was appointed as director.
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Mr. Cheung Yuen Tak, Ms. Jesusa Victoria Hernandez-Bautista, Mr. Romulo
L. Neri and Mr. Thelmo Luis O. Cunanan Jr. who were appointed as directors
since the last Annual General Meeting, retire from the office of director in
accordance with Article 96 of the Company’s Article of Association, and
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

The directors of the Company as of 31 December 2008 had the following
personal interests in the shares of the Company, its holding companies,
subsidiaries and other associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) at that date as recorded in the
register of directors’ interests required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO:

(1) INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES

Name
HH

David K. P Li

RIT{E %L A -~ Jesusa Victoria Hernandez-
Bautistazz £ + Romulo L. NeriZc 4 K& Thelmo Luis
O.Cunanan Jr. e £ E—RREBF KB
ZEAES - KEARQRIABEEREER
T REIERITZIREAFAL EEEET -

BREERRBFAS LEEEE EETE
EARRAREEAMBRRFEFT AR AREE
A EAR IR —FARIEMMELEEE
(—RORERRERIN ZRBEH -

RGEF LB RDD) EI21MERCHFLES
ERBTMasmsE R—ETN\F+ A=
T—BZARREEZNE ARFAARA - Hiz
Baw - MBARREMBEAR (E&AGE
HEHEEN)) BBTRA 2 BERERIT ¢

(1) BRITRAzZER

Number of ordinary shares of
HK$0.50 each in the Company

AATEREE
BEOSOTZEBRZBRHAHE
Number of % of total

shares held issued shares
HE BITRA

EREAE BEzEDL
500,000 0.13%
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(1

INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES (Continued) (1) EBRITRAXzEz=E)

Number of common shares in
San Miguel Corporation

EHBEQRNEBERZBROEE
Number of % of total
Name shares held issued shares
HEBTRA
i FR#HE wWHEsEDL
Class A (par value of 5 pesos each): H¥E (EREESKR):
Ramon S. Ang BRI 6,050 0.000192%
Faustino F. Galang il 83,800 0.002656%
Carlos Antonio M. Berba gEE B 1,045 0.000033%
Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia 30,000 0.000951%
Ferdinand K. Constantino REX 163,800 0.005192%
Carmelo L. Santiago MEIES 5,000 0.000158%
Class B (par value of 5 pesos each): Z¥E (EREESHKZE) :
Faustino F. Galang = 60,000 0.001902%
Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia 30,000 0.000951%
Ferdinand K. Constantino FEEX 60,000 0.001902%
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(2)

INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES

Certain directors of the Company have been granted stock options
to subscribe for common shares in SMC under SMC's stock option
scheme. Particulars of stock options in SMC held by directors during

the year and as at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

Name

4

Class A (par value

of 5 pesos each):

Ramon S. Ang

Carlos Antonio
M. Berba

Minerva Lourdes B.
Bibonia

E (BR
HESKE) .

BERX

Minerva Lourdes B.

Bibonia

Date
granted

R AM

26/06/2003
01/10/2004
10/11/2005
01/03/2007
26/06/2008

01/10/2004
10/11/2005
01/03/2007
26/06/2008

26/06/2003
01/10/2004
10/11/2005
01/03/2007
26/06/2008

Exercise
period
up to

BT
i34

26/06/2011
01/10/2012
10/11/2013
01/03/2015
26/06/2016

01/10/2012
10/11/2013
01/03/2015
26/06/2016

26/06/2011
01/10/2012
10/11/2013
01/03/2015
26/06/2016

Stock options in San Miguel Corporation
ENENRZERE
Number of
options
outstanding
at the
Exercise beginning
price per of the
option year
FHR
HATRZ
BROEE BREHA
(pesos)
(&%)
54.50 259,422
57.50 266,854
65.00 204,654
63.50 993,386
40.50 -
57.50 8,168
65.00 20,566
63.50 127,058
40.50 -
54.50 11,928
57.50 26,750
65.00 33,824
63.50 180,898
40.50 -

RIEERAD z

ARTETEFRBENBRAZBR
WS BB E R I AR N R AT Y

FREARG o RFEARRK

—TEN\F+

“A=T - BREEHRALENBRRZ
FERERBT

Number of
options
granted

during
the year

ERRMZ
BRERE

535,923

Number of
options
outstanding
at the end
of the year
FiK
HRTELZ
BEREHE

209,422
266,854
204,654
993,386
535,923

8,168
20,566
127,058
76,374

11,928
26,750
33,824
180,898
96,138
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(2) INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued) (2) REBRGO2ZERE
Stock options in San Miguel Corporation
EhBEARZERE
Number of
options
outstanding Number of Number of
at the options options
Exercise Exercise beginning granted outstanding
Date period price per of the during at the end
Name granted up to option year the year of the year
FOR FER
BT HRITEZ FRRLZ HWRITEZ
#e REBH (i BRITERE EREHA EREHR EREHA
(pesos)
(&%)

Class A (par value RE(BR
of 5 pesos each): AESRER)

(Continued) ()
Ferdinand K. RER 01/10/2004 01/10/2012 57.50 18,881 - 18,881
Constantino 10/11/2005 10/11/2013 65.00 32,260 - 32,260
01/03/2007 01/03/2015 63.50 260,533 - 260,533
26/06/2008 26/06/2016 4050 - 140,298 140,298
Peter K.Y. Tam e 26/06/2003 26/06/2011 54.50 17,452 - 17,452
01/10/2004 01/10/2012 57.50 17,039 - 17,039
10/11/2005 10/11/2013 65.00 909 - 909
Class B (par value 78 Bk
of 5 pesos each): HESRE)
Ramon S. Ang =430'¢ 26/06/2003 26/06/2011 62.50 111,181 - 111,181
01/10/2004 01/10/2012 70.50 114,366 - 114,366
10/11/2005 10/11/2013 89.50 136,436 - 136,436
01/03/2007 01/03/2015 7550 662,258 - 662,258
26/06/2008 26/06/2016 40.50 — 229,680 229,680
Carlos Antonio gl 01/10/2004 01/10/2012 70.50 3,508 - 3,508
M. Berba 10/11/2005 10/11/2013 89.50 13,710 - 13,710
01/03/2007 01/03/2015 75.50 84,706 - 84,706

26/06/2008 26/06/2016 40.50 - 32,730 32,730
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(2)

INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued) (2) RERRKRHDzER (E)

Name

%

Class B (par value
of 5 pesos each):
(Continued)

Minerva Lourdes B.
Bibonia

Ferdinand K.
Constantino

Peter K.Y. Tam

ZE(BR
HAERZR) :

(&)

Minerva Lourdes B.

Bibonia

Date
granted

REHM

26/06/2003
01/10/2004
10/11/2005
01/03/2007
26/06/2008

01/10/2004
10/11/2005
01/03/2007
26/06/2008

26/06/2003
01/10/2004
10/11/2005

Number of
options
granted

during
the year

FRREZ
BREHE

Stock options in San Miguel Corporation
ENBRRIZBRE
Number of
options
outstanding
at the
Exercise Exercise beginning
period price per of the
up to option year
LS
B BRTHEZ
RE SROEE BREHE
(pesos)
(BZ)
26/06/2011 62.50 5112
01/10/2012 70.50 11,464
10/11/2013 89.50 22,550
01/03/2015 75.50 120,598
26/06/2016 40.50 —
01/10/2012 70.50 8,091
10/11/2013 89.50 32,260
01/03/2015 75.50 173,689
26/06/2016 40.50 —
26/06/2011 62.50 7,480
01/10/2012 70.50 7,303
10/11/2013 89.50 606

Number of
options
outstanding
at the end
of the year
FER
HRITREZ
BREYA

512
11,464
22,550

120,598
41,202

8,091
32,260
173,689
60,129

7,480
7,303
606
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(2)

INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

All interests in the share and underlying shares of the Company; its
holding companies, subsidiaries and other associated corporations
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors of the Company or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as adopted
by the Company.

RIEEE R AD iz R (%)

ARA - HERAT - WEAT R
B9 1N A2 BTG IR 1 B AR e 2529
BiER -

Bk EXCPrAsh - NAE] - HERATE
P 8 1 B K EL A B B2 8 R AN AR R AR
BREATEZHEARNRRERTBEEART
SEM AR Z RO R HERERE

RIBAR R AR CGE S MR %) #5352
fEmRF 2 ELM BB LT ARE
FETEFRZHNRETRIFFANG AR
Bz - B ETRRSN  REE
HAECBE18IA N 2 FRGEREF A
DA HEEERAT - B ARK
HipB B AR 2 - BRI R EE
B EmPORR -
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The Company has been notified of the following interests in the Company's 7=
issued shares at 31 December 2008 amounting to 5% or more of the

ordinary shares in issue:

Substantial shareholders
FERR

San Miguel Corporation (note 1)
San Miguel International Limited (note 1)
San Miguel Holdings Limited (note 1)

San Miguel Brewing International Limited

(note 1)
Neptunia Corporation Limited (note 1)
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (note 2)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company
Limited (note 2) (as trustee of The Li
Ka-Shing Unity Trust)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited
(note 2) (as trustee of another
discretionary trust)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation
Limited (note 2) (as trustee of The Li
Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust)

Li Ka-Shing (note 2)

3
23

EHBAR (D

EHBEIRAR A (1)

ENERAERAR (D

ENEEBEEERA
(HH5ED)

mABR AR (1)

RIE¥ (5E)BRAR
(Mt 5E2)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company
Limited (K&2) (fE&The L
Ka-Shing Unity TrustZ {£5EA)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited
(5E2) (E RS — 2 REIE T
ZIEFEA)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation
Limited (Ffi552) (£ &The Li Ka-Shing
Unity Discretionary TrustZ {£5EA)

5 (32

£T)
BAR
BT

mHER

\F+ZA=+—H ' XAREET
TE%TTaﬁﬁxZS%jZLAiE’]ZFQT

Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each

EREEBY050T2EBRRH
Number of %
ordinary of total
shares held issued shares
HERTRA
L AREE BYgzEAL
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
245,720,800 65.78%
23,703,000 6.34%
23,703,000 6.34%
23,703,000 6.34%
23,703,000 6.34%
23,703,000 6.34%

23
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Notes:

SMC, San Miguel International Limited (“SMIL"), San Miguel Holdings Limited
(“SMHL") and San Miguel Brewing International Limited (“SMBIL") are all
deemed to hold the above disclosed interest of Neptunia Corporation
Limited (“Neptunia”) in the Company because SMC has a controlling interest
in SMIL, SMIL has a controlling interest in SMHL, SMHL has a controlling
interest in SMBIL and SMBIL has a controlling interest in Neptunia.

Mr. Li Ka-Shing is the settlor of each of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary
Trust (“"DT1") and another discretionary trust (“DT2"). Each of Li Ka-Shing
Unity Trustee Corporation Limited (“TDT1”, which is the trustee of DT1) and
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (“TDT2", which is the trustee of DT2)
holds units in The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust (“UT1") but is not entitled to any
interest or share in any particular property comprising the trust assets of
the said unit trusts. The discretionary beneficiaries of each of DT1 and DT2
are, inter alia, Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor, his wife and children, and Mr. Li Tzar
Kai, Richard. Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited (“TUT1") as trustee
of UT1, together with certain companies which TUT1 as trustee of UT1 is
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting
power at their general meetings, hold more than one-third of the issued
share capital of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH"). CKH is entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at
the general meetings of Conroy Assets Limited and Hamstar Profits Limited.

The entire issued share capital of each of TUT1, TDT1 and TDT2 are owned
by Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited (“Unity Holdco”). Each of Mr. Li Ka-
Shing, Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor and Mr. Li Tzar Kai, Richard is only interested
in one-third of the entire issued share capital of Unity Holdco. TUT1 is
interested in the shares of CKH by reason only of its obligation and power
to hold interests in those shares in its ordinary course of business as trustee
and, when performing its function as trustee, exercises its power to hold
interests in the shares of CKH independently without any reference to Unity
Holdco or any of Mr. Li Ka-Shing, Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor and Mr. Li Tzar Kai,
Richard as a holder of the shares of Unity Holdco as aforesaid.

By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Li Ka-Shing (being the settlor and may
being regarded as a founder of each of DT1 and DT2 for the purpose of the
SFQ), TUT1,TDT1, TDT2, and CKH is deemed to be interested in the 23,703,000
shares of the Company of which 13,624,600 shares are held by Conroy
Assets Limited and 10,078,400 shares are held by Hamstar Profits Limited.

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be recorded in

the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the
Company.

3T -

HRENBARFAEENBEBRARAR (T4E
NEIRR]) 2 s - £ OB A L=
BARAR (T DRER]) 2 E s - £
ZFEEE N BRBEAR AT ([E£0EE
BIR)) 2z PERR i 2 N At o MR O BRI % 5 45 S
MARAR (I303m M) 2 R - BUbE
7‘%@/&7 ENBIRR - A DER A ERE
BRIRE A5 A LI PRI ER 2 SO AR A
NA)ZHEm e

EEZ LA BThe Li Ka-Shing Unity
Discretionary Trust ([DT1]) k5 —2#{E5E
(IDT2)) 2 A EHE F A ° Li Ka-Shing Unity
Trustee Corporation Limited ([TDT1] » A&
DT1Z{Z5EA) K Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp
Limited ([TDT2] » ADT2Z 53t A) B ERE
The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust ([UT1]) & F 2
i - Bt E2EETLmARZE MZ*EZE
RELREEWES AR ETMAZEHKRHD
DT1RDT2 2 AR5 A BIEZBR A4 -
HEFHfL - RFZE%LE o LiKa-Shing
Unity Trustee Company Limited ([TUT1]) JA
UTTEsEA B D ERE TR ATUTILAUT ST
}\Z%ﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂxiﬁ’\iﬁ@é‘ﬁ H17
F=p2z— U EREEZARXRBERT
i%(‘i@)*ﬁ‘ﬁﬁ T(F%:‘%J)E%TTHQK_

P2 —k A E#Em o RERConroy Assets
Limited JHamstar Profits Limited# & 7 H
PRERAE EITESIEHIITE =92 — A £
X?ng

TUT1 « TDT1 ~ XTDT22 222 37T AR ALi
Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited ([Unity
Holdcol) # 48 - Za#itE « ZBHBERER
ZE RS A & B A Unity Holdco=9 2 —
2EEBITRA - TUTMHEARE 2 RN #ER
RABBTHEEREIAZETRENMESE
—MRIEFEES WA AMEEAF MBI TE
ERARERMDER 2 E DM EAR Uty
Holdcogk |+ X ffriitt 2 Unity Holdcof& (h ¥ 5
AZEHEE  FRELERTER AR
HEMER -

RIBEGEHFRBAEGERD)  TEHLE R
DTIRDT2Z ER T ARGRES KBEK
BIfE @ WARBZMEETLZKRILA)
TUT1 - TDT1  TDR2EEEHE B WA A%
B2 7])23,703,000/% 2 DS - HPE
@ Conroy Assets Limited# g 2
13,624,6000% f& 17 & A Hamstar Profits
Limited#s & 2 10,078,4000% B 15
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Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date of
this Annual Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Pursuant to an agreement dated 12 June 1963, Neptunia Corporation
Limited provides technical and advisory services to the Company and may
be paid a General Managers’ commission. Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Faustino
F. Galang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Ms. Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia, Mr.
Ferdinand K. Constantino, Mr. Peter K.Y. Tam and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago
are interested parties to this contract to the extent that they either have
equity interests in or are directors and/or officers of SMC, the ultimate
holding company of Neptunia Corporation Limited. General Managers'
commission has not been paid by the Company or charged by Neptunia
Corporation Limited since the 1995 financial year.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the Company;,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or associated corporations
was a party, and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

(1) TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP

In order to comply with the Listing Rules, the Company entered
into an agreement with SMC, the ultimate holding company of the
Company, on 6 December 2007 (the “Agreement”) with a view to
renewing the agreement to carry out the trade-related continuing
connected transactions which consist of, among others, purchase
of packaging materials, alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverages
products from the San Miguel Group, between members of the
Group and members of the San Miguel Group, for a further term of
3 years from 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2010 under the same
terms and conditions as those under the agreement entered into
by SMC and the Company dated 11 March 2005 in respect of such
trade-related continuing connected transactions.

The Agreement, including the trade-related continuing connected
transactions and the caps set for such transactions, was approved
by independent shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting
of the Company on 4 January 2008.

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group entered into the following
trade-related continuing connected transactions during the year.

ARBMERZAFHERARARNRRESH
HoRAFHREH  ARF-EHEREEEMS
RHMARARESF EMAR ([ ETRA) 5

RZAREKE -

BE—NAAN=ZFEXA+ BT 25 - i
AR AR RAR G R ERERE - I
AJURER AR A IR & o EFR v BARUUEAE -~ B
FAHAE - GLBR LA - Minerva Lourdes B.
Biboniazz & « BEZ AL - ERRLAE NG
BAEEREAIRFIER AR 2 &KIER AT
ENBARZIE  KAENBERARIZEER
SERRAR AR AT ERFE - B
—NANEFHRFER - AQR)IES B
BENE - s AR A B IR E R AR B
BEEE -

B EXFTRBEEIN - ARE - SEEAERA
A MBARIEERRMERN A FERER
SFREARKHETLEARBEETREEANE
mZEBERH -

(1) BHEEHEEESZEBHNFERER
2
e EmRA - AAREARQF 2 &
BIZRAT A HBATF R-EBT+
FH+ZAARNBEL—0iHHES ([HE
E)RMEFHEAETERE SHERAN
HEMER S BREALNEERES
EMR RBRERIEBEERmER
H-_ZETN\F-A-RBE-_T-TF+
ZA=ZT—RALLAEB=F - ZBEIE
RRGEHER_ZERF=H+—HH
RAGEANBRRRI N 2 HEHEH
M BERER SN HEER -

HHREEREEEIEENFERER
HRHER S ER)ENR-FF/N\F—
AMBARARBNBRRENAGRNEE
M RCRALE -

RAFEER - REBERBI HEEETT
UTEESERNSERERS -

25



26

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS | EE={)&

(1

TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED (1)
TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP

(Continued)

Continuing connected transactions

Purchase of packaging materials by the
Group from the San Miguel Group

Purchase of alcoholic and non-alcoholic
beverage products by the Group from
the San Miguel Group

The on-going trade-related continuing connected transactions under
the Agreement had been reviewed by the independent non-

BEANEEEZFRANSEBER

2 (18)

2008 2008
Actual Cap
BEBERS B EmR
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

AEERENEERELEME
20,906 42,100

AEBERENEEREERBE
KIEB RS AR o EE o

3,906 7,500

REBHEE 2 RE 5B BNRERE
RN RBBILIFRTEFTERILE

executive directors of the Company who had confirmed that the
said transactions were entered into:

(M

)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms and on terms in accordance
with the Agreement that were fair and reasonable insofar
as the shareholders of the Company were concerned; and

the aggregate amount of the said on-going trade-related
continuing connected transactions did not exceed the
relevant caps as set out in the announcement dated 6
December 2007.

The Company has received from the auditors a letter reporting that
the on-going trade-related continuing connected transactions
between the Group and the San Miguel Group under the Agreement:

(1

have received the approval of the Board of Directors of the
Company,

have been entered into in accordance with the Agreement
dated 6 December 2007, and

have not exceeded the relevant caps as set out in the
announcement dated 6 December 2007.

RAERHTY

R—BREERBBEPET

B REERR RS SR
MEARNE ZBREHAFREE
T &

ZHEZHERNEREZ 51
BTHEANR _ZTTLFT AN
BofHEL LR -

ARBCEEZHBANE B RS ERLE
ERELWEERENEEZHEARS
BERENFERERS :
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(2)

CONNECTED TRANSACTION MADE WITH A SUBSIDIARY
OF SMC

On 25 July 2007, San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited
("SMGB"), a 92% indirectly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
ArchEn Technologies, Inc. ("ArchEn”), entered into the Engineering
Design Services Agreement, pursuant to which Archkn provided
process and engineering design services to SMGB in respect of
SMGB's expansion of its brewery facilities in Shunde District, Foshan
City, Guangdong Province, the People's Republic of China. ArchEn
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SMC and is thus a connected person
of the Company. As such, the Engineering Design Services
Agreement constituted a connected transaction for the Company.

The total fees payable by SMGB to ArchEn was US$220,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,705,000). Based on the
transaction amounts of the Engineering Design Services Agreement
and the technical support services provided by SMC in respect of
the brewery expansion project of SMGB, which transactions were
aggregated as a single transaction as they are similar in nature and
relate to the SMGB brewery expansion, the connected transactions
are only subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempted from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement.

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors)
considered that the terms of the Engineering Design Services
Agreement were fair and reasonable and in the best interests of
the Company and the shareholders of the Company as a whole
and the Engineering Design Services Agreement was entered into
on normal commercial terms.

An announcement was made by the Company on 26 July 2007 in
this respect.

HEHBEATNHEF-—BHRBEARZ
BEXS

ZETLFLAZ+RHA  AREEE
N% Mz 2 HEMB AT EN (BR) 2
BAEBR AR ([EHER]) EArchEn
Technologies, Inc. ([ArchEn]) 577 T2
RET ARSI - BEUL - ArchEni Bt A 7
BREREREUNHBEEREHILT
B & 2 P % e i () A ) R BR BB it T
R RET RIE R BB R o FHRArChEnZ
ENERE 2 Z2EWEAT - ArchEng
RARCEANT - At - ZTI2RE
R HBHRERARNRARZBERS o

EHEREMAChENZ BB E A
220,000% 7t (FBZE R #91,720,0007%
JL) c BRATIRME Z R EE AL - I
MAENER 2EBRETTEIRE - T
RRETIRBS I E M ENBRARILENE
RrBERETEE S —BmEHE o’
MY BRRBz RS GBEEE L —TER
5o ZERFHEEET EHRAE14A
BEETZHRBREAMHE - BEREE
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ARABIBR 2 ER&EM - M ITER
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RZZEZLF+L AT RBARFER
SEEH R -
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(3)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS

Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited (“GSMB") is an equity
joint venture formed between San Miguel (Guangdong) Limited (“SMG")
and Guangzhou Brewery (“GB") and is held as to 70% by SMG and as
t0 30% by GB. SMG is a 92.989%-owned subsidiary of the Company
and GB is a connected person of the Company by virtue of its
substantial shareholding in GSMB. To facilitate the business operations
of GSMB, San Miguel International Limited (“SMIL") (@ member of the
San Miguel Group) and GB have each granted GSMB a licence to use
their respective trademarks upon establishment of GSMB pursuant to
the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement and the GB Trademark
Licensing Agreement, respectively.

Apart from the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Group
has also entered into other licence agreements with certain other
members of the San Miguel Group: (i) the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement entered into between the Company and Neptunia
(@ wholly owned indirect subsidiary of SMC) and (ii) the San Miguel
Brewing International Limited (“SMBIL") Sub-licence Agreement
entered into between SMGB and SMBIL (a wholly owned indirect
subsidiary of SMC).

The directors (including the non-executive directors) considered that
the terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Neptunia
Sub-license Agreement, the SMBIL Sub-license Agreement
(collectively, the “San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements”) and the
GB Trademark Licensing Agreement, including their respective
tenures which are for more than three years, are on normal
commercial terms, fair and reasonable, and that the transactions
contemplated under such agreements are in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The transactions under the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements
(which have been aggregated as a single transaction for purposes
of the Listing Rules) and the GB Trademark Licensing Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.34(1)
of the Listing Rules. The annual royalties payable by the Group under
each of (i) the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (i) the
GB Trademark Licensing Agreement shall be less than HK$10 million
for the year ended 31 December 2008 and each of the financial
years during the remaining term of the relevant licence/sub-licence
agreements. Based on this proposed cap, the transactions under
each of the (i) San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (i) the
GB Trademark Licensing Agreement are only subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements and are exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement. An
announcement was made by the Company on 19 September 2007
in this respect.
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(3)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

In relation to the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement and the
Neptunia Sub-Licence Agreement, as per the payment instructions
of SMC dated 18 December 2000, all royalties receivable from GSMB
and the Company have been assigned and transferred to SMBIL
effective 1 January 2000 until further notice.

The amount of royalties paid to Guangzhou Brewery and the San
Miguel Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 were
HK$1,905,000 and HK$4,152,000 respectively (2007: HK$1,743,000
and HK$4,421,000).

The on-going continuing connected transactions under the San
Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and GB Trademark Licensing
Agreement had been reviewed by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company who had confirmed that the said
transactions were entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business;

2) on normal commercial terms in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions that were fair and
reasonable insofar as the shareholders of the Company were
concerned; and

3) the aggregate amount of the said on-going continuing
connected transactions did not exceed the cap disclosed in
the announcement dated 19 September 2007.

The Company has received from the auditors a letter reporting that
the continuing connected transactions under the San Miguel Group
Licensing Agreements and GB Trademark Licensing Agreement:

(1) have received the approval of the Board of Directors of the
Company,

(2) were entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

(3) the consideration of the transactions has not exceeded the
cap disclosed in the announcement dated 19 September
2007.
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(3)

(4)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

In anticipation of the expiration of the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement on 1 January 2009, an Extension Letter was signed by
Neptunia and by the Company on 17 December 2008 to extend the
term of the Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement for one year from 1
January 2009 to 31 December 2009 at nil consideration. Save for
such extension, all other terms remain unchanged. An
announcement was made by the Company on 24 December 2008
in this respect.

OTHER CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE
SAN MIGUEL GROUP

The Group sold packaged beers to the San Miguel Group during the
year, which amounted to HK$945,000. These transactions are
exempt from all the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements according to the Listing Rules
Chapter 14A.31(2), De minimis transactions.

The Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong have sponsored a non-
contributory defined benefit scheme, The San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong
Limited Retirement Fund (the “Fund”), which covers local permanent
employees, and was registered in September 1995 under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance. The Fund’s assets are held in trust and
administered by a trustee. The members’ benefits are determined based
on the employees’ final remuneration and length of service. Contributions
to the Fund are made in accordance with the recommendations of
independent actuaries who value the retirement scheme at regular
intervals, usually triennially.

The Fund was granted exemption from the Mandatory Provident Fund
("MPF") regulations by the MPF Scheme Authority on 24 July 2000, following
modifications to the Fund benefits which comply with MPF regulations.

The latest actuarial assessment of the Fund was carried out as at
31 December 2007 and the results were as follows:

Q)

The actuary of the Fund is Mr. A Wong, Fellow of the Canadian
Institute of Actuaries and Fellow of the Society of Actuaries. In the
actuarial valuation, the attained age method was used. Other major
assumptions used in the valuation were: investment return of 6.5%
per annum; long-term salary escalation of 3% per annum; mortality
rates under the 2001 Hong Kong Life Tables; normal retirement age
of 60 years; and early retirement rates allowed between the ages
55 to 60 years.
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(2) The unaudited market value of the Fund assets was HK$54,106,000
as at 31 December 2007.

) The minimum level of funding as recommended by the Fund actuary
was 7.5% of salary for 2008, 2009 and 2010.

(4) The solvency deficit was HK$2,500,000, i.e. the obligation under the
Fund was 96% covered by the Fund'’s assets, at 31 December 2007.

Particulars of the employee retirement plans of the Company and the Group
are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

The Group's working capital as at 31 December 2008 was HK$100,242,000
compared with HK$232,287,000 as at 31 December 2007.

The Group's cash and bank deposits (excluding pledged deposits) as at 31
December 2008 were HK$346,437,000 (2007: HK$446,168,000) and are
sufficient to fund working capital requirements and capital expenditure in
2009.

The Group has short term credit facilities of HK$193,750,000 (2007:
HK$193,780,000) of which HK$186,146,000 (2007: HK$193,780,000) had
been utilised as at 31 December 2008.

Total borrowings as at 31 December 2008 for the Company and for the
Group were HK$NiIl (2007: HK$95,000,000) and HK$186,146,000 (2007:
HK$193,780,000), respectively.

Particulars of bank loans of the Company and the Group as at 31 December
2008 are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 127 and 129 of the Annual
Report.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance section on pages 35 to 46 of the
Annual Report.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the board

L

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 April 2009
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) is committed to
maintaining statutory and regulatory standards and adherence to the
principles of corporate governance emphasising transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibility and fairness. The board and
the senior management of the Company ensure that effective self-
regulatory practices exist to protect the interests of the shareholders of
the Company. These include a board comprising high calibre members,
board committees and effective internal systems and controls.

The Company has applied the principles of the Code Provisions under the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “"Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year
ended 31 December 2008 (the “year under review"), save for the deviation
discussed below:

o All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific
term (Code Provision A.4.1) but are subject to retirement by rotation
once every three years and re-election at the annual general
meeting under the Company’s Articles of Association.

The following sections set out the principles in the Code as they have
been applied by the Company, including any deviation therefrom, for the
year under review.

The management and control of the business of the Company is vested in
its board. It is the duty of the board to create value to the shareholders of
the Company, establish the Company’s strategic direction, set the
Company’s objectives and plan in accordance therewith, and provide
leadership and ensure availability of resources in the attainment of such
objectives. The board is bound to manage the Company in a responsible
and effective manner, and therefore every director ensures that he carries
out his duty in good faith and in compliance with the standards of applicable
laws and regulations, and acts in the best interests of the Company and
its shareholders at all times.

The board and the executive management have clearly defined
responsibilities under various internal control and checks-and-balance
mechanisms. The board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to
the executive management of the Company. These responsibilities include:
implementation of the decisions of the board and organisation and direction
of the day-to-day operation and management of the Company in
accordance with the management strategies and plans approved by the
board; preparation and monitoring of annual production plans and
operating budget; and control, supervision and monitoring of capital,
technical and human resources.
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The board held four meetings during the year under review. The chief
finance officer and company secretary attended all the scheduled board
meetings to report matters arising from corporate governance, risk
management, statutory compliance, accounting and finance, and kept
detailed minutes of each meeting, which are available for all directors. At
the meeting, the directors discussed and formulated overall strategies for
the Company, monitored financial performance and discussed the annual
and interim results, as well as other significant matters. Daily operational
matters are delegated to management.

At least 14 days of notice of all board meetings was given to all directors,
and all directors were given the opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. An agenda and accompanying board papers are
sent in full to all directors at least 3 days before every board meeting.

The number of board meetings and committee meetings attended by each
director during the year under review is set out in the following table. Figure
in brackets indicates maximum number of meetings in the period in which
the individual was a board member or board committee member (as the
case may be).
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Scheduled

board

Note meetings
iR HEEes

AR

Audit Remuneration

committee  committee

meetings meetings

BUZEEE FMZeER

Nomination
meetings
REes

212)
22)

RIEFHITES -

Independent non-executive directors BukunEs

David K.P Li/Alternate, Adrian MX. L SEE/EMEE3RE 3/(4) 112) 110

Ng Wai Sun R () 2 2

Carmelo L. Santingo idiad 4/(8) 2 22

Executive director BTES

Peter K. Y. Tam (Managing Director) EER(H7EE) YW NATER  NATER

Non-executive directors FHTES

Ramon S. Ang (Chairman) B (EE) YW NATEE  NATEE

Fausting F. Galang (Deputy Chairman) BRE(F1E) I NATER 112)

Carlos Antonio M. Berba AER W) NATEE  NATER

Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia IO NATER NATER

Cheung Yuen Tak Rk )] A0 NATER  NATER

Ferdinand K. Constantino REX Y NATER 112

Thelmo Lis 0. Cunanan Jr Themo Luis 0. Cunanan Jr. 2 "y NATER NATEE

Iwan David Newyn Evans L0 () 02 NATER  NATER

Jesusa Victoria Hernandez-Bautista Jesusa Victoria Hernandez-Bautista ] 22) N/A A NATEE

Francis H. Jardeleza BBy () Yy NATEER  NATEE

Notes: BIEE -

) Appointed as non-executive director on 30 June 2008. (1 RZZEENFAA=THEZEAIENTE
$ °

) Appointed as non-executive director on 28 November 2008. 2 RZZEENF+—AZ T \BEZERIERN
TESE -

(3) Retired as non-executive director on 10 June 2008. (3) RZZEZENFANATAHE

() Appointed as non-executive director on 12 September 2008. (4) RZZEENFNLA+ Z_BEZEAIENITE
$ °

(5) Resigned as non-executive director on 28 November 2008. %) JrA—_—s

ENF+—AZ T N\HEEFRTE

37



38

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The chairman of the board is Mr. Ramon S. Ang, and the chief executive
officer (or managing director, in the case of the Company) is Mr. Peter K. Y.
Tam. The chairman’s and the managing director’s roles are clearly defined
to ensure their independence, accountability and responsibility.

The chairman takes the lead in formulating overall strategies and policies
of the Company; ensures the effective performance by the board of its
functions, including compliance with good corporate governance practices;
and encourages and facilitates active contribution of directors in board
activities and constructive relations between executive and non-executive
directors. The chairman also ensures effective communication with
shareholders of the Company and receipt by the directors of adequate
and complete information. The role of deputy chairman is carried out by
Mr. Faustino F. Galang.

The managing director, supported by other board members and the senior
management, is responsible for managing the day-to-day business of the
Company. He is also accountable to the board for the implementation of
the Company's overall strategies, and coordination of overall business
operations.

As at the date of this report, the board consists of eleven non-executive
directors and one executive director. Four of the non-executive directors
are independent. Further details of the composition of the board can be
found in the section entitled “The Board” of this report.

All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term,
but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meetings. Under the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third
of the directors, including the non-executive directors, are subject to
retirement, rotation and re-election at each annual general meeting.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive directors are expected to participate in the activities of the
board, particularly in the establishment of a selection process to ensure a
mix of competent directors and officers; adoption of a system of internal
checks and balances; scrutiny of the Company’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives; and ensuring that the exercise of
board authority is within the powers conferred to the board under its
Articles of Association, by-laws and applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in the fields
of accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise and number in
the board ensure that strong independent views and judgement are brought
in the board’s deliberations and that such views and judgement carry
weight in the board’s decision-making process. Their presence and
participation also enable the board to maintain high standards of
compliance in financial and other mandatory reporting requirements, and
provide adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests of
shareholders of the Company and the Company.

Each independent non-executive director gives the Company an annual
confirmation of his independence. The Company considers such directors
to be independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Each director, upon reasonable request, is given access to independent
professional advice in circumstances he may deem appropriate and
necessary for the discharge of his duties to the Company, at the expense
of the Company.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing all information
and representations contained in the financial statements of the Company
for the year under review. The directors consider that the financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with the generally accepted
accounting standards in Hong Kong, and reflect amounts that are based
on the best estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent judgment of
the board and management with an appropriate consideration to
materiality. As at 31 December 2008, the directors, having made appropriate
enquiries, are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company'’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors have prepared
the financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 124 to 125.
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The board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal control systems to safeguard the Company’s assets and
shareholders’ interests, as well as for reviewing the effectiveness of these
systems.

The board has conducted a review of the Company's internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2008, including financial,
operational and compliance control and risk management functions and
assessed the effectiveness of internal control by considering reviews
performed by the audit committee, executive management, external
advisor and internal auditors.

To assist the directors in the discharge of their duties, the Company
provides every newly appointed director with a comprehensive induction
program on the first occasion of his appointment, where such directors
are provided with information on the Company'’s organization and business;
the membership, duties and responsibilities of the board, board committees
and senior management; corporate governance practices and procedures;
and latest financial information on the operations of the Company. Such
information shall be supplemented with visits to the Company’s key plant
sites and meetings with key senior executives.

Throughout their tenure, the directors shall be provided with updates on
the business of the Company, latest developments of the Listing Rules
and other applicable legal and regulatory requirements, corporate social
responsibility matters and other changes affecting the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the year under review, the audit committee is composed of three
independent non-executive directors: Mr. Ng Wai Sun, Mr. Carmelo L.
Santiago and Dr. The Hon. Sir David K. P. Li, who acts as chairman of the
committee. The audit committee met twice in 2008 with full minutes kept
by the company secretary. Individual attendance of each committee
member at these meetings is shown in the table presented above.

Under its terms of reference, the audit committee shall assist the board in
fulfilling its corporate governance and oversight responsibilities in relation
to financial reporting, internal control structure, risk management systems
and internal and external audit functions. The audit committee is further
authorised by the board to investigate any activity within its terms of
reference, and is tasked with recommending to the board appropriate
actions emanating from such investigations. The audit committee has
unrestricted access to personnel, records, internal and external auditors,
risk assessment and assurance and senior management, as may be
appropriate in the discharge of its functions.

In 2008, the audit committee discharged its responsibilities by:

@) making recommendations to the board on the reappointment of
the external auditor and approval of the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor;

(2) monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard, and discussing with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

(3) implementing the Company’s policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

(4) reviewing, and monitoring the integrity of, the financial statements
of the Company and the Company's annual and interim reports and
the auditors’ report to ensure that the information presents a true
and balanced assessment of the Company’s financial position;

(5) reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems to ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have an effective internal control system;

(6) coordinating with the internal auditors from San Miguel Corporation
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company;

(7) reviewing the Company's financial and accounting policies and
practices;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

(8) reviewing the external auditor's management letter, material queries
raised by the external auditor to the management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
the management’s response to such queries; and

9) reporting to the board on the matters set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices on the audit committee.

The audit committee is authorised by the board to obtain external legal or
other independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of
outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it considers necessary
in the performance of its functions. The audit committee is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The audit
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the total fee in respect of audit and non-
audit services (mainly tax review and corporate governance review)
provided to the Company and its subsidiaries by external auditors
amounted to HK$2,900,000 (2007: HK$2,725,000) and HK$31,500 (2007:
HK$300,000), respectively.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

For the year under review, the remuneration committee is composed of
three independent non-executive directors, namely: Dr. The Hon. Sir David
K. P.Li, Mr. Ng Wai Sun and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago, and two non-executive
directors, namely: Mr. Ferdinand K. Constantino and Mr. Faustino F. Galang.
The remuneration committee is chaired by an independent non-executive
director, Mr. Ng Wai Sun. The remuneration committee met twice in 2008
with full minutes kept by the company secretary. Individual attendance of
each committee member at these meetings is shown in the table presented
above.

The primary role of the remuneration committee under its terms of
reference is to support and advise the board in fulfilling the board’s
responsibility to the shareholders of the Company to:

(1) establish coherent remuneration policies and practices that will be
observed and enable the Company to attract and retain top calibre
executives and directors;

(2) fairly and responsibly reward executives based on their performance
and the performance of the Company, and the general pay
environment; and
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)
3 comply with the Code Provisions on remuneration of directors,

mainly by:
o determining executive and director remuneration policy;
° determining the remuneration of executive directors upon

consultation with the chairman or managing director
regarding their proposals for such remuneration;,

. reviewing and approving the remuneration of the executives
who directly report to the managing director, and as
appropriate, other senior management; and

o reviewing and approving all equity based plans.

The remuneration committee has the right to seek any information it
considers necessary to fulfil its duties, which includes the right to obtain
appropriate external advice at the Company’s expense, and is provided
with sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The
remuneration committee’s specific terms of reference are available on
request to any shareholders of the Company and are posted on the
Ccompany's website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the committee discussed the remuneration
related matters in the scheduled meetings, and set the policy on the
remuneration of its members and key senior executives in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association. As recommended, no director
fee would be paid for the year 2008.

The committee also determined the policy for the reimbursement of
expenses which were properly incurred by the directors in the performance
of their duties in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.
Details of the remuneration of directors and senior management for the
year ended 31 December 2008 are set out in notes 9, 10 and 31(c) to the
financial statements.

The Company has not established a nomination committee. Directors of
the Company are responsible for making recommendations to the board
for consideration and approval on nominations, appointment of directors
and board succession, with a view to appoint to the board individuals with
the relevant experience and capabilities to maintain and improve the
competitiveness of the Company. The board formulates the policy, reviews
the size, structure and composition of the board, and assesses the
independence of its independent non-executive directors in accordance
with the criteria prescribed under the Listing Rules and the Code.
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The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities transactions
and dealings (the “Code of Conduct”) based on the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. The terms of the Code of Conduct are no less
exacting than the standards in the Model Code, and the Code of Conduct
applies to all the relevant persons as defined in the Code, including the
directors of the Company, any employee of the Company, or a director or
employee of a subsidiary or holding company of the Company who,
because of such office or employment, are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company or its
securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors of the Company who
have confirmed in writing their compliance with the required standards
set out in the Code of Conduct during the year under review.

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective
communications with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to enhance
such communications, the Company provides information relating to the
Company and its business in its annual report and also disseminates such
information electronically through its website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

The Company regards the annual general meeting as an important event
as it provides an opportunity for direct communications between the board
and its shareholders. All directors and senior management make an effort
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company to address
shareholders’ queries. All the shareholders of the Company are given a
minimum of 20 business days’ notice of the date and venue of the annual
general meeting of the Company. The Company supports the Code’s
principle to encourage shareholders’ participation.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Chairman
Deputy Chairman
Managing Director

Ramon S. Ang,
Faustino F. Galang,
Tam Ka Yuen, Peter

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Carlos Antonio M. Berba

Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia
Cheung Yuen Tak

Thelmo Luis O. Cunanan Jr.

Jesusa Victoria Hernandez-Bautista

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

David K.P. Li, BMm, ip

Romulo L. Neri

Ng Wai Sun

Carmelo L. Santiago

Adrian M.K. Li, Alternate to David K.P. Li, Gawm, P

The details of the directors as at the date of this report are as follows:

Mr. Ramon S. ANG, ssmE, aged 55, is the Chairman and a non-executive
Director of the Company. He has been appointed as the Chairman since
10 June 2005 and a non-executive Director of the Company since
27 November 1998. He is the Vice Chairman, President and Chief Operating
Officer of San Miguel Corporation (“SMC"), the ultimate holding company
of the Company (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange). He is also the Chairman and President of San Miguel Brewery,
Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), the
Chairman of San Miguel Properties, Inc. (the shares of which are listed on
the Philippine Stock Exchange), a director of Ginebra San Miguel, Inc. (the
shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and San Miguel
Pure Foods Company, Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine
Stock Exchange) and the Chairman and director of various subsidiaries of
SMC. Mr. Ang is also the Chairman and CEO of Petron Corporation (the
shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), the Vice
Chairman of Manila Electric Company (the shares of which are listed on
the Philippine Stock Exchange), the Chairman of Liberty Telecoms Holdings,
Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and
an independent director of Philweb Corporation (the shares of which are
listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange).

Mr. Faustino F. GALANG, VBE, BA, Bsc, aged 62, is a non-executive Director,
the Deputy Chairman and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company. He has been a Director since 22 March 1991. He also served
as Division President of the San Miguel Beer Division of SMC (the shares of
which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) until November 2006.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Mr. TAM Ka Yuen, Peter, vsa, BBA, aged 50, is an executive Director and
the Managing Director of the Company. Mr. Tam joined the Company in
1993 and he was appointed as an executive Director and the Managing
Director on 31 December 2007. He is also a director of the Company's
various subsidiaries. He has more than 22 years of experience in the selling
and marketing of consumer products in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
Mr. Tam graduated from the University of Hawaii in 1985 with a bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration and later obtained a master’s degree
also in Business Administration from the California State University in 1987.

Mr. Carlos Antonio M. BERBA, mBA, Msc, Bsc, aged 44, appointed as a
non-executive Director of the Company on 16 April 2007. Mr. Berba is the
Chairman and General Manager of San Miguel Brewing International Limited
(“SMBIL"), a controlling shareholder of the Company and director of various
subsidiaries of SMBIL. He has served as Division President of the San Miguel
Beer Division of SMC (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange) until October 2007. Mr. Berba has 23 years of experience in
strategic planning, financial analysis and corporate structuring initiatives.
Mr. Berba graduated from the University of the Philippines with a bachelor’s
degree of Science in Electrical Engineering. He later obtained a master’s
degree in Business Administration from The Wharton School, University of
Pennsylvania and a master’s degree of Science in Japanese Business
Studies from Japan America Institute of Management Science & Chaminade
University of Honolulu.

Ms. Minerva Lourdes B. BIBONIA, ssc, aged 50, appointed as a
non-executive Director of the Company on 24 February 2006, is the Head
of Marketing of San Miguel Brewery, Inc. She also served as Senior Vice
President for Corporate Marketing of San Miguel Corporation and is also a
director of San Miguel Brewing International Limited. Ms. Bibonia has
27 years of combined local and international marketing and sales
experience.

Mr. CHEUNG Yuen Tak, aged 53, appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on 30 June 2008, is the Managing Director of A.S. Watson
Industries Limited. Mr. Cheung has over 30 years of experience in the South
East Asia region including sales, marketing and manufacturing. Mr. Cheung
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic in Business Studies.

Mr. Thelmo Luis O. CUNANAN JR., MBA, BA, aged 38, appointed as a
non-executive Director on 28 November 2008, is a director of All-Media
Access Plus, Inc. and Contributing Editor of Travelife. He is also the founding
member and executive director of Philippine-Somali Business and
Friendship Association, Inc. Mr. Cunanan Jr. also serves as a consultant in
various companies in the Philippines. Mr. Cunanan Jr. graduated from
Ateneo de Manila University in 1994 with a bachelor's degree in AB
Interdisciplinary Studies and later obtained a master’s degree in Business
Administration from Ateneo de Manila Graduate School of Business.
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Ms. Jesusa Victoria HERNANDEZ-BAUTISTA, aged 40, appointed as a
non-executive Director on 12 September 2008, is the President of Nature
Concepts Inc. She is also a director of San Miguel Pure Foods Company,
Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and
Anchor Insurance Brokerage Corporation. Ms. Hernandez-Bautista also
holds senior management positions in companies involved in realty, film,
trading and manpower services in the Philippines.

Dr. The Hon. Sir David LI KwoK-po, 6Bwm, GBS, OBE, MA Cantab (Economics &
Law), Hon DSc. (Imperial), Hon. DBA (Napier), Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon. DSocSc
(Lingnan), Hon. LLD (Hong Kong), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. LLD (Cantab), FCA, FCPA, FCPA
(Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB, FBCS, CITP, FCIArb, JP, Officier de L'Ordre de la Couronne, Grand Officer of
the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity, The Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays with Neck
Ribbon, Officier de la Legion d’Honneur, aged 70, appointed on 22 March 1991, is
an independent non-executive Director, Chairman of the audit committee
and a member of the remuneration committee of the Company. Sir David
is Chairman and Chief Executive of The Bank of East Asia, Limited and a
director of numerous other companies in Hong Kong and overseas. Sir
David is a member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong. He is Chairman
of The Chinese Banks’ Association, Limited and the Hong Kong Management
Association. He is also a member of the Banking Advisory Committee and
the Treasury Markets Association.

Mr. Romulo L. NERI, mB4, BsBA, aged 59, appointed as an independent
non-executive Director and remuneration committee member of the
Company on 24 April 2009, is the President and Chief Executive Officer of
Social Security System and the Secretary of National Social Welfare Cluster
of the Philippines. He is also a director of San Miguel Pure Foods Company,
Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange). Mr.
Neri is also a director of Union Bank of the Philippines, Inc. (the shares of
which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), Philex Mining
Corporation (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchnage) and Philippine Health Insurance Corporation. Mr. Neri is a former
Chairman of the Commission on Higher Education (16 August 2007 - 31
July 2008), Monetary Board Member of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (1
August 2005 - 31 July 2008), Secretary of Socio-Economic Planning and
Director-General of the National Economic and Development Authority (16
February 2006 - 15 August 2007, 17 December 2002 - 18 July 2005) and
Secretary of the Department of Budget and Management (19 July 2005 -
15 February 2006) in the Philippines.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Mr. NG Wai Sun, aged 66, appointed on 1 April 2001, is an independent
non-executive Director, Chairman of the remuneration committee and a
member of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Ng is Chairman of
Jibsen Capital (Holdings) Limited. He is also a director of the Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals (2004-2006) and Member of the Standing Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Guangxi Zhuang
Autonomous Region. Mr. Ng is also appointed as the Honorary Investment
and Trade Representative of the Republic of the Philippines per Executive
Order No. 20.

Mr. Carmelo L. SANTIAGO, 884, aged 66, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. He has been an independent Director of SMC
(the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) since 24
July 2008. He is also an independent Director of San Miguel Brewery, Inc.
(the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), San Miguel
Properties, Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange), Anchor Insurance Brokerage Corporation and Liberty Telecoms
Holdings Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange). Mr. Santiago is the founder and owner of several branches of
Melo’s restaurant in the Philippines and a director of Terbo Concept, Inc.,
a Philippine company engaged in retail and food business. He was a director
of the Company from 27 February 2003 to 23 February 2005. Having over
33 years of directorate positions in various companies in the Philippines
and Hong Kong, Mr. Santiago has extensive experience in foods, beverages,
publication, properties, power and banking industries.

Mr. Adrian M. K. LI, ma, MBA, LPC, aged 35, appointed as Alternate Director
to Dr The Hon. Sir David K.P. Li on 1 August 2002, is General Manager and
Head of Corporate Banking Division of The Bank of East Asia, Limited since
2000. Mr. Li is a member of the Ninth and Tenth Guangdong Provincial
Committee and was formerly a member of the Ninth & Tenth Guangzhou
Ccommittee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, P R.
C. He is also a committee member of the Ninth & Tenth All-China Youth
Federation, Deputy Chairman of the Ninth Beijing Municipality Youth
Federation and Counsellor of Hong Kong United Youth Association Limited.
In addition, Mr. Li is Council Member of the Vocational Training Council and
Chairman of its Banking and Finance Industry Training Board and a member
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Industry Schemes Committee of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority. He sits on the Board of
Ocean Park Corporation and is an independent non-executive director of
Sino Land Company Limited, Tsim Sha Tsui Properties Limited, Sino Hotel
(Holdings) Limited and China State Construction International Holdings
Limited. Mr. Li is also an alternate independent non-executive director of
AFFIN Holdings Berhad, which is listed on the main board of the Malaysia
Stock Exchange. Mr. Li is also a member of The Law Society of England and
Wales and The Law Society of Hong Kong. He is the eldest son of Dr. The
Hon. Sir David K.P. Li.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Peter K.Y. Tam
John K.L. Cheung
Andes PH. Leung
Eric PK. Lam

Ric W.T. Yeung
C.K.Ho

Steven Co

Edith Y.M. Ng

Herbert W.M. Chu

Managing Director

Chief Finance Officer & Company Secretary
General Sales Manager

Marketing Manager

Senior Manager — Logistics

Senior Manager — Operations

Senior Manager — Corporate Development

Senior Manager — Human Resources &
Administration

Managing Director, Guangzhou San Miguel

Brewery Company Limited
Elisito A. Locaylocay Plant Manager, San Miguel (Guangdong)
Brewery Company Limited

The details of the management executives as at the date of this report are
as follows:

Mr. Peter K.Y. TAM, Managing Director. Please refer to the Directors
section on page 49 for details.

Mr. John K.L. CHEUNG, mBa, BeA, aged 46, Chief Finance Officer & Company
Secretary, joined the Company in 1997. Mr. Cheung is a member of the
Institute of Management Accountants. He has over 23-year solid experience
in finance and accounting in various industries. Mr. Cheung received a
Master’s degree and a Bachelor’s degree, both in Business Administration,
from Georgia State University, USA.

Mr. Andes P.H. LEUNG, vBA, BBA, aged 38, General Sales Manager, joined
the Company in 2001. Mr. Leung has over 14-year solid experience in
advertising, international marketing and sales in various industries.

Mr. Eric P.K. LAM, mBA, BA, aged 45, Marketing Manager, joined the
Company in 2008. Mr. Lam has over 15 years solid experience in marketing
in various industries.

Mr. Ric W.T. YEUNG, 884, aged 45, Senior Manager - Logistics, joined the
Company in 1983. During his 25 years of service with the Company, Mr.
Yeung has gained extensive experience in supply planning, procurement
and physical distribution.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Mr. C.K. HO, msc, bip, aged 50, Senior Manager - Operations, joined the
Company in 1988. During his over 20 years of service with the Company,
Mr. Ho has gained extensive experience in the operations of beer
production.

Mr. Steven CO, 84, aged 39, Senior Manager - Corporate Development,
joined the Company in 1994. Mr. Co has gained over 14 years of experience
in business planning, business research, corporate affairs and quality
management in the Company.

Ms. Edith Y.M. NG, vsa, pip aged 46, Senior Manager - Human Resources
& Administration, joined the Company in 1989. Ms. Ng has gained over 19
years of experience in the fields of marketing, sales and human resources.

Mr. Herbert W.M. CHU, mB4, B84, aged 56, Managing Director of Guangzhou
San Miguel Brewery Company Limited, joined the Company in 1977. During
his over 31 years of service with San Miguel, Mr. Chu has gained extensive
experience in brewery operations, logistics, sales and marketing as well
as public relations.

Mr. Elisito A. LOCAYLOCAY, sschE, aged 47, Plant Manager of San Miguel
(Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited, appointed by the Headquarters
to take up the post in early 2007. Mr. Locaylocay is a Brewmaster with
more than 21 years working experience in San Miguel Group and he has
gained extensive experience in brewery operations.
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STATISTICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS | && &G st o4

Years ended 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except BET-_A=+—HILFE  BEK
per share data and number of personnel BRHOEERE T ABIMILEE T Tt E
TEN YEAR REVIEW +5F [6] &
2008 2007 2006

Turnover (1) B (1) 753,375 754,833 826,817
(Loss)/profit from operations ik (B518) /&7 (298,526) 4,326 (11,607)
(Loss)/profit for the year before AetEHAFESTZ

restructuring costs (E18) /&7 (256,026) 49,926 (13,163)
Restructuring costs (2) BHAZ — (310,220) (93,159)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE (BB &BF (256,026) (260,294) (106,322)
Taxes paid, including beer tax THIRE R 102,485 140,831 127,007
Cash dividends attributable to the year FEREGRSRE — — —
Cash dividends per share (cents) BRR S KA (L) — — =
Fixed assets and projects under development EE&EK&EEFIER 1,379,561 1,496,910 1,769,377
Net worth (3), (4), (5) F1E (3), 4), (5) 1,495,952 1,754,463 1,974,097
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREMET 91,656 105,510 118,836
Number of personnel (6) BT A (6) 766 838 768
(1) Turnover has been adjusted where discounts and beer duty and taxes have been set-off with the gross turnover.
(2) Restructuring costs in 2007 represented restructuring activities on the Company, while restructuring costs in 2005 and 2006 represented

restructuring activities on Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited.
(3) Net worth for the years 1999 to 2000 have been adjusted for change in accounting policy of dividend recognition.
(4) Net worth for the years 2001 to 2004 have been adjusted for change in accounting policy of minority interests.
(5) Net worth for the years 2002 to 2005 have been adjusted for change in accounting policy of defined benefit retirement plan.
(6) Number of personnel represents actual headcount as of the last working day of the year.
BBENREBRER DA
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STATISTICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS | &&&Gst o4

Years ended 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except HE+T_A=+—HLFE BER

per share data and number of personnel

B EENE T ASIMNIAER T E

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
806,909 777,830 684,866 804,749 939,702 992,531 1,024,015
11,165 19,754 (29,950) 38,942 101,787 100,723 83,737
(2,111) 12,504 (35,848) 27,355 90,403 87,657 60,100
(63,295) = = = = = =
(65,400) 12,504 (35,848) 27,355 90,403 87,657 60,100
141,219 135,185 134,986 164,268 170,830 160,745 156,038
3,736 3,736 = 37,356 160,636 52,300 41,093
1 1 = 1 43 14 11
1,838,164 1,939,135 2,016,646 2,083,863 2,156,190 2,214,254 2,276,150
2,062,073 2,117,652 2,120,679 2,147,315 2,268,190 2,233,837 2,193,847
128,539 122,149 124,480 131,168 126,053 127,094 144,121
1,151 1,145 1,168 1,214 1,268 1,276 1,345
(1) SR EMIT - WA AT
) TR FEERNDERBENEERZEAED M _EERAL - TERFZEAMRERMNENRBEER QR ZEHEED -
@) —MNNFE_ZTZZE FEERREBRZ @A BERBEEHFE -
(4) R FE_TTNFFEER BB RES 2 S BRNE (EHBE -
ES) R SR TTRFZFECHERBNERARAEZ G BRAZELFE -

6) ETABHEREFERE ETEAZERETHA -

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
Annual Report 2008




CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT | #REUER

for the year ended 31 December 2008 HE_ZTT)\F+_A=+—HLEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AAB¥ETE)
2008 2007
Note $'000 $'000
B &E Fr Tt

Turnover EER 3,13 753,375 754,833
Cost of sales SHE R A (326,085) (353,959)
Gross profit EF 427,290 400,874
Other revenue NN 4 14,966 19,636
Other net (expenses)/income Hip (FAX) /W F 58 4 (1,193) 472
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAS (324,337) (307,642)
Administrative expenses THAX (79,195) (75,011)
Other operating expenses H s (44,098) (14,342)
Impairment losses of EMBEEZ

non-current assets BEEE 5 (291,959) (19,661)
(Loss)/profit from operations k& (BR) BF (298,526) 4,326
Finance costs %G ER 6(a) (15,659) (9,920)
Restructuring costs FHRAE 7 — (310,220)
Loss before taxation BREL A1 B 1B 6 (314,185) (315,814)
Income tax credit FRSfiat A 8 58,159 55,520
Loss for the year FEEBE 13 (256,026) (260,294)
Attributable to: EiEmT
Equity shareholders of the Company ARGz FA A 11, 28(a) (257,769) (262,376)
Minority interests D ERR R 28(a) 1,743 2,082
Loss for the year FEFSE 28(a) (256,026) (260,294)
Loss per share SRER
— Basic (cents) — EAR () 12(a) (69) (70)
— Diluted (cents) — 5% () 12(b) N/A T N/A T iE F

The notes on pages 65 to 123 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET | 88 EEER

at 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) RZEBEZENFFTZA=+—8 (UEBEHE)

2008 2007
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
B 5 Fx Frx Tt Fx
Non-current assets ERBEE
Fixed assets BEE&EE 14(a)
— Property, plant and equipment — #7% - #22 K%:& 1,224,950 1,328,148
— Investment properties — B 85,439 87,534
— Interests in leasehold land — EKEHETER
held for own use under miEAEMHEE
operating leases THbREE 69,172 81,228
1,379,561 1,496,910
Intangible assets ERAE 15 28,722 39,643
Goodwill EE 16 — 5,044
Other tangible assets BEMAEREE 18 41,192 53,164
1,449,475 1,594,761
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 64,974 40,027
Trade and other receivables JEUE 5 K E b BRIE 20 103,586 126,695
Amounts due from holding 2l /NI
companies and fellow [E] Z i &8 A &)
subsidiaries ARIE 21 9,132 6,893
Current tax recoverable A Y [B1 2 B 7% 18 27(a) 101 71
Pledged deposits P17 R 22(a) — 18,696
Cash and cash equivalents RekERREIEE 22(b) 346,437 446,168
__52423%0 [ 63850 _ _____
Current liabilities REEE
Bank loans (unsecured) RITE R () 23 (186,146) (193,780)
Trade and other payables ENE 5 Rk E MR 24 (231,385) (193,373)
Amounts due to holding FERHERR A 7 &
companies and fellow 7] Z i 8 A &
subsidiaries HRI8 21 (6,457) (19,110)
_ (423988 (406.263)  _ _ _ _ _
Net current assets REEEZFE 100,242 232,287
Total assets less current BEER
liabilities REBEE 1,549,717 1,827,048
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Retirement benefit liabilities RINEFIBE 26(a) (37,845) (8,625)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEBE 27(b (15,920) (63,960)
(53,765) (72,585)
NET ASSETS EERE 1,495,952 1,754,463

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.

Annual Report 2008



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET | 48 B EEEBER

at 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) RZEBEZENFFTZA=+—8 (UAEBEHE)
2008 2007
Note $'000 $'000 $°'000 $'000
=g Fr Fr Tt T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARR&EE 28(a)
Share capital f& 2 186,785 186,785
Reserves s 1,263,946 1,526,691

Total equity attributable to KA T

equity shareholders of EEFEA
the Company FEfhRE = 1,450,731 1,713,476
Minority interests PERRER 45,221 40,987
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 1,495,952 1,754,463
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 April 2009. &HREFE@R —_EZAEMA —+ A B AR
T E o
L |
Ramon S. Ang X Peter K. Y. Tam EER
Director EF Director EF
The notes on pages 65 to 123 form part of these financial statements. PR EB6SE 1238 2 R EME AR Bz 2z —
B o
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BALANCE SHEET |

at 31 December 2008 A NF+=—A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABEEE)
2008 2007
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
B 5 Fx Frx Tt Fx
Non-current assets ERBEE
Fixed assets EE & E 14(b)
— Property, plant and equipment — ¥7% - #2E K RE 648,250 674,082
— Interests in leasehold land held — ERKLHETH A
for own use under operating A NHEE
leases THbRE R 47,266 48,824
695,516 722,906
Intangible assets mREE 15 27,497 38,489
Investments in subsidiaries S NGIE 2 17 991,561 1,171,201
1,714,574 1,932,596
Ccurrent assets RENEE
Inventories FE 19 14,033 6,747
Trade and other receivables B E 5 K EAbfRIE 20 77,960 81,354
Amounts due from holding JiE W3z iR A B K
companies and fellow B NEIAET
subsidiaries ARIE 21 2,915 907
Amount due from a subsidiary FEUR BT 8 A B BRI 25 — 107,033
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERRLSIEE 22(b) 10,869 11,988
. Mos777 208029
Current liabilities nEEE
Bank loans (unsecured) RITE R () 23 — (95,000)
Trade and other payables BB 5 Kk EMIRIE 24 (66,449) (71,257)
Amounts due to holding FETHERR A A &
companies and fellow 7 Z [ &8 A &)
subsidiaries HRIE 21 (558) (17,823)
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATHT B A AIBRIA 25 (13,540) (2,491)
_____________________________________ (80,547) (186571)
Net current assets REBEERE 25,230 21,458
Total assets less current BEER
liabilities REEE 1,739,804 1,954,054
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATHT B A A BRIE 25 (355,622) (377,747)
Retirement benefit liabilities BRIREMNEE 26(a) (37,845) (8,625)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFHIBEE 27(b) (6,142) (427)
(399,609) (386,799)
NET ASSETS EEFRE 1,340,195 1,567,255

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.

Annual Report 2008



BALANCE SHEET | EE A&
R-ZZ —A

at 31 December 2008 N\ZETENF A =+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AT )
2008 2007
Note $'000 $'000 $°'000 $'000
=g Fr Fr Tt Tt
CAPITAL AND RESERVES PR R fE 45 28(b)
Share capital [ 186,785 186,785
Reserves R 1,153,410 1,380,470
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 1,340,195 1,567,255
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 April 2009. &HESFEE@R —EZNEMA —+ A B AR
T E -
L |
Ramon S. Ang X Peter K. Y. Tam EER
Director == Director EF
The notes on pages 65 to 123 form part of these financial statements. PR EB6SE 1238 2 R EME AR Bz 2z —
e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE |

for the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

nV-.F Elﬁﬁﬁlb\ l‘lﬂé ><
&A%

BETZZN\FT-_A=+—HLEFEUBFE)

2008 2007
Note $'000 $'000
b= Fr Tt
Exchange differences on translation HME G INGT B A A
of the financial statements MMz TEE
of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong ZIER ERE 28(a) 14,706 18,926
Exchange differences on monetary items T A K & B EE S
that form part of the net investment WBARZIEENSRIER
in subsidiaries outside Hong Kong, net of tax ~ FrE4L 2 BRFL1&E ¥ =48 28(a) 18,607 18,368
Actuarial gains and losses of defined T FE AR MR AR ET
benefit retirement plan, net of tax BREREEER 28(a) (35,798) 3,366
Income and expense recognised directly EHiEmIAHER
in equity 2 x (2,485) 40,660
Loss for the year FEEIE (256,026) (260,294)
Total recognised income AEEERRAZ
and expense for the year Wk BE (258,511) (219,634)
Attributable to: EEmT :
Equity shareholders of the Company AArE=FEAA (262,745) (224,4006)
Minority interests DB R 4,234 4,772
Total recognised income AEEERAZ
and expense for the year W% (258,511) (219,634)

The notes on pages 65 to 123 form part of these financial statements.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
Annual Report 2008
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT |

for the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

%ZI'AIEQ/)ILE%%

BE_ZZEN\F+ZA=+—"RLFEUABEHE)

2008 2007
Note $'000 $'000
B &E Fr Tt
Operating activities R
Loss before taxation R %t B S 18 (314,185) (315,814)
Adjustments for: TP EIEEL A
— Amortisation of land lease premium — HE T HhFRIE 2 B H 2,459 2,563
— Amortisation of other tangible assets — HMEREE 2 #HE 14,945 13,076
— Depreciation of property, — W% BBEREZEEZ
plant and equipment e 55,764 64,744
— Depreciation of investment properties — REMEZTE 2,219 2,216
— Impairment loss of non-current assets — ERBEEZREEIE 291,959 304,661
— Impairment loss of trade — RERE S REMRIE 2
and other receivables VEREY Ei=! 2,989 4,926
— Interest expenses — FEZH 14,739 9,702
— Interest income — FEWA (9,460) (14,248)
— Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, — HEYE  HEREEZF
plant and equipment &8 (BF) 375 (147)
— Net loss on disposal —LEHMBEREEZ
of other tangible assets FEE 4,182 3,897
— Equity-settled share-based — AR BER 2
payment expenses S EA — 162
— Foreign exchange gains — SN H 2 B (4,903) (7,181)
Operating profit before changes EEEXREEA
in working capital ZEEBF 61,083 68,557
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEz GEm e (24,947) 10,637
Decrease in trade and other receivables JEWE 5 K E b BRIE 2 8 20,008 14,974
(Increase)/decrease in net amounts due 2l /NI
from holding companies EESG G
and fellow subsidiaries ZREE (B R (14,892) 32,901
Increase/(decrease) in trade JENE 5 Rk HMERIE
and other payables Z&Em,/ Crd) 13,757 (31,968)
Decrease in retirement benefit liabilities RARENEEZRD (6,423) (2,166)
cash generated from operations REEBZRERA 48,586 92,935
Income tax FRiS %t
— Hong Kong Profits Tax paid — BEREENER (5) (266)
Net cash generated REHEK 2
from operating activities RERANFHE 48,581 92,669
Investing activities REXTW
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BABREEE (146,838) (60,313)
Payment for purchase A HAD
of other tangible assets BREE (16,782) (20,993)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE M REE
plant and equipment Fr 15 k18 2,262 1,264
Proceeds from disposal ﬁ%ﬁ‘rﬁlﬁﬁ/ﬁ@
of other tangible assets FT1S 58 1,263 1,253
Interest received 2 U F B 9,601 14,169
Net cash used in investing activities REXB2RESREBEHE (150,494) (64,620
EE N STBERA

—ETNS
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2008 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FEHEMEBR

BE-ZZ\F+-A=+—HIEFEABEKFE)

2008 2007
Note $'000 $'000
b= Fr Tt
Financing activities AEEE
Proceeds from new bank loans FTILIRITE K 90,713 16,022
Repayment of bank loans BEERITER (100,967) —
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits EIRERZmAD, () 18,696 (18,696)
Interest paid BEATALE (15,721) (9,646)
Net cash used in AMEEE 2
_financing activities REmMA® w29 (230
Net (decrease)/increase in cash REREERELER
and cash equivalents ZRE (D) /1 (109,192) 15,729
cash and cash equivalents R—BA—BZzEER
at 1 January ZERESEBEF 446,168 416,335
Effect of foreign exchange EX2E
rates changes a7 9,461 14,104
Cash and cash equivalents RtTt-ZA=+—HZzHER
at 31 December ZERELBEALER 22(b) 346,437 446,168

The notes on pages 65 to 123 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(a)

(b)

significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 2 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2008 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to
as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with
a significant risk of material adjustment in next year are discussed in
note 36.

(a)

(b)
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B RS R AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)

1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EFEEHBER @

(c) Subsidiaries and minority interests (c) HWBARARLHERREZR
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when M AR AR EFTIES 2 EEE o WEA
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies SEBRATELE BRI TE R A & E BN
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing MERFZ  ZEBBERAZIAEE
control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken il o FERTAGIE HI MR - IRFW ] TT{ERY
into account. BEREECTERLENRN
An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated R B R E) 2B RIFFIERERB A
financial statements from the date that control commences until the REMBEmERAN - EEEGIERIERIL
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and REBRARBIZEZ BRI S - AR
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are SIEE 2 EARERBF - TR iR &R
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. B W TSR R R UA G o IR R(E TJ*
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated REEARBZEZR G MEE 2 KE
in the same way as unrealised profits but only to the extent that there E5ig - ELA*“E@%‘HH@ZH&%% °
is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of subsidiaries DR RER T - FRARREENE
attributable to interests that are not owned by the Company, whether BIEA TF‘aﬁE%ﬁE’]J’ETEW% AEE
directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of which the EREZRED ﬁﬁKEEKAuZ%‘ A
Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those BHEKEMMINHE B EEEB LE
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a DERRELETAVKAR E%E’Lﬁm%
contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the %o PERRERTREEEABRAN
definition of a financial liability. Minority interests are presented in the AR ERT - B A] R R R B AR R
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately from equity mAf o PERRERMAEBRFEANR
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Minority BB S WEm R IA D B A VAR
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the REmRAFEBNARGREEEA 2
consolidated income statement as an allocation of the total profit or # o
loss for the year between minority interests and the equity shareholders
of the Company.
Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s interest sl > SHAR R FEA [E5 1E R 1B T B A Bl i e P
in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any further losses OB R - FTR 2 R R AR
applicable to the minority, are charged against the Group's interest HRREL 2 E—FEE - HRAEEZ
except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation to, and R IORR - M BR R ZBEE R AR
is able to, make additional investment to cover the losses. If the N2 BEEREHBHEERIVERGR o %M
subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group's interest is allocated BRARIRBZAERFEDETAER
all such profits until the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed HEARNBASEAERESR SR FE
by the Group has been recovered. M2 BEGIBEAL -
Loans from holders of minority interests and other contractual RAOERFRESFEAELHNERARE
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities fth & 49 & (EAF AR R M 52 1(m) sk (n) (R B (&
in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with notes 1(m) or (n) HMEEmE) R EEBBRESNAY
depending on the nature of the liability. BEaIE -
In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is stated ARBIzBEEBRRANMB AR &
at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(j)). & 0 TR R AR EE R (R ()
HIER ©

(d) Goodwill (d =2
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination RERBRIEAZEE - DIEWEKAE
over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s BFTEATERFEE  BERIABE

identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is allocated to cash-generating units and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(j)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit, any attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

ZRARBEZERE -

BB AR AR S RIE R B IRR o BB
DEZHEENRIRE EN - WEFET
BRI (RHEE)) -

HERNR S BAR - BRANHBHER
BALERETH -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(e)

(f)

(8)

significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

The following property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see note 1(j)), with the exception of construction in progress which is
stated at cost less any impairment losses (see note 1(j)).

— land held under operating leases and buildings thereon, where
the fair values of the leasehold interest in the land and buildings
cannot be measured separately at the inception of the lease
and the building is not clearly held under an operating lease
(see note 1(2));

— buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land,
where the fair value of the building could be measured
separately from the fair value of the leasehold land at the
inception of the lease (see note 1(g)); and

— other items of plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or 10ss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual values, if any, using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more
than 50 years after the date of purchase.

Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

4 t0 50 years
4 t0 7 years

No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time when the assets are completed and ready for use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and buildings which are owned or held
under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(j)).
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment properties,
less their estimated residual values, if any, using the straight-line method
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as described
in note 1(s)(iii).

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions,
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the
legal form of a lease.

(e)

(f)

(8)
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B RS R AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)
1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EFEEHBER @
(8) Leased assets (Continued) (g) MHEEE®
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group (i) HEFTAEBZEENSE
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the zTEA$’$IM$ﬁi}\HﬁE’]§F A4 FATH
Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified ERERBEENBRIBY BB HER
as being held under finance leases. EAREE - ﬁl@%é?@/\iﬂ?ﬁ%mﬂéfﬁ
EHEA -
Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of W ARG éfEZﬁﬁ“ﬁ‘ﬂ TP Ey =
ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the HEEE I AKLHE - LATERIN :
following exceptions:
— property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet = MEeREMEEBRNKEHEY
the definition of an investment property is classified as an %@%ﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁé%% ZZD%%&
investment property on a property-by-property basis and, if PERREYME  ZHES R
classified as investment property, is accounted for as if held EHEAR &
under a finance lease; and
— land held for own use under an operating lease, where the fair = BEEEHERBAMBEEN -
value cannot be measured separately from the fair value of a b, %’Afﬁ BEEEERBET
building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is FEHEURE@ALTH ENEERNA
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the REBEIFE  SEABRER
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these BEHERFBAR  BRIFEEHEE
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease TN ARIR 4 %ﬁa‘ﬁi’]h*ﬁ’ Al
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the Alem o BLUL 5 - HE AR
previous lessee. MARNEBEH X ZENE @ o
P B AR A F B o
(ii)  Operating lease charges (i) KeEHR
Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, MARERBECLEEFERAERE - RIEMH
payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal AP 2 FRIB TH R 2 R A SRR AT FH & A
instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term. FTlE 2 25T EAR S 88 - A5 E!’J%E,%\/%i@]
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral B EATTEN R FHENREN —
part of the aggregate net lease payments made. A LB P IER ©
The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised PSSR A TN BB AN B IRE R
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term. Impairment EHERE A o HERBESRMENE
losses are recognised in accordance with the accounting policy set 1()8) =2 5T BUR PRIER o
out in note 1()).
(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (hy EEEE BERM
Intangible assets are trademarks and club debentures acquired by the IR R & P {E AR E AR AR SR E R E R
Group and stated in the balance sheet at cost less impairment losses AERERIE  WEFETRENR
(see note 1())). (RBFFE(G) °
These intangible assets are not amortised as their useful lives are SEREEY BEH  AAHAERSF
assessed to be indefinite, and are tested annually for impairment (see B AT AT EE XS F AERE R
note 1(j)). (RFFE() °
The conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is ﬂﬁ/éﬁz—ﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂTﬁEmZ%uﬁ%
reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances R NEEBARCRESHZEEL
continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. TEEMFA EEHZEWE%% o
()  other tangible assets (i) HMBEREE

Other tangible assets are returnable bottles and crates used by
subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

Returnable bottles and crates are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note 1())).
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of bottles and crates,

HA A EE /MNP EARLME ([
B2 ) B 2 R BT B0 B A8 K BB AE o

BREZWERBEBREEEABRARK
AR R T 8 55 ROR BB 1R SRR (R FE
() o B 3 TS 5 TG A R BB A K SRR L

less their estimated residual values, using the straight-line method over HREE - EORRMFEREFHRAER
their estimated useful lives of two and seven years respectively. JEETE MMEE -

Both the useful lives of bottles and crates and their residual values are
reviewed annually.

AEB S A R B2 I ERFHR
Eﬂﬁfﬁti TR ©
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
()
0}

significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets

Impairment of receivables

Receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about one or
more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinguency in interest
or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate, where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result
in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
receivable included within trade and other receivables, whose recovery
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade receivable directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
()
(i)

significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

Property, plant and equipment;
Investment properties;

Interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating
leases;

Investments in subsidiaries;
Goodwill;

Intangible assets; and
Other tangible assets.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its net
selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment 10ss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(k)

()]

(m)

(n)

(0)

significant accounting policies (continued)

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
COSts necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in
the period in which the reversal occurs.

Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 1(j)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference
between the amount initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

(k)

(0]

(m)

(n)

(0)

B B R AR Y R

(B BRI - BB EHE)
FESHERE®
ﬁ4b

TFE Tk A R P IR FEME < RIEE
fbME -

XA A DR FARAOLF H - W BERE
BERA - ITRA K57 EE BRI
BhELAR SR EE A 2 H AR AR o

AERFERABER 2 At EERMGE
SRR AR R A ET SHE AN o

REEFER  ZEFEZRAESER
BRNEBRREIIERS - FEMRER 2
BHME 2 BENABFREERER BB
EREARSIERS B A &35 FE 8 Inim
7 S i (A 77 B 0RY (B R0 4 () 3 A
EIFTHERR A ST o

P& W R E

[EYKIARZINR AN BEMRER - HRAIZ
BSHRK AN R A BRI RV BB 1R SIME
(RHEENG) - M fr A A BE W R B e
FRIEA L Y EEMREEERAN RS

B BUMBRFETIAE - AIER® ©
EZEBERT - BUGRIEIZK AR AR E R

KR E B R 51 R

LIRSRER
MEERFMRAABERELERSHER
MR - MIERIR - M S ESIRE KT
B KAEBELEENEAEZESEER
HIR L ERR A RORE B PR

FEA+ =R IE

ENFIARIR R A EERER - ERAZ

BIHRATIE  EMIREETK AR
ATIE

ReERERRELER
RAeRERRESERERTET RE

HRIT MR AL B TS MR 2 BT X B R HAR
BUHSZRE  MaERERR A LK
EANReeHAEERBERR IR
BAR=EANIHPZKREER -

BENRBERARR

\ 1 \;

—ZEF)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)

1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EFEEHBER @

(p) Employee benefits (p) EEETA

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined (i) AHEESEAMREEER
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined BRIRETE 2 AT ® - FRIEA - BHF
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits 5 - EREFERNRETE 2 HRRASE AT
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered REZHEBERIEINRAEBREIRME
by employees. RS < FE REt o

(ii)  Defined benefit retirement plan obligations (i) TEEBEMEMNTEZEE
The Group'’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement plan AN BB E B AR MR KA B R IE 2 B S
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees B ThiE b ETE B R A AR R A A
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; VABR £ AR 75 BT BR BX 2 s 2R ) 25 & &8 i 5
that benefit is discounted to determine the present value, and the fair B EETERERZIENZRA T AR -
value of any plan assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at WAIBR AT EIEE 2 AR EE - BRI
the balance sheet date on high quality corporate bonds that have REBEARES RHBEARAEEREITE
maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations. The 2 BRI REEB 2 am XK o 51 &
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit TERAERBEMKAETENEREE
credit method. HEIT e
Actuarial gains and losses in respect of the defined benefit retirement FRE EERAMNBR RN BE RSN EE
plan are recognised in full in the period in which they occur, outside BINEIE RN EmIE N2 EER - b
profit or loss, in equity. They shall not be recognised in profit or loss in FETE BB O B 2 M TR ©
a subsequent period.

(iii) Share-based payments (iiiy URGHBEBROIZMS
The fair value of stock options granted to the employees by the RRARRBIERARIEN B R ([E
Company'’s ultimate holding company, San Miguel Corporation (“SMC"), BAR R T EENERENAALBES
is recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in WRBEEKA - B FEEIEEE
capital contribution reserve. The inter-company charge in relation to e SEAENBRARFZEBBRER AR A
these stock options levied on the Company by SMC is offset against HENERAMES @ AEBEFEEEARHA
the capital contribution reserve and with a corresponding adjustment AR - WHRERAEAE -
to liabilities.
The fair value of stock options is measured at grant date using the ElREAABEIOIAEEBSEREA
Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and RarRET| B EBENGE - WERE
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where the employees IR B REN G R IGHE - BIEBAL
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally [BAITERBGME - 75 Al MG S B AR e -
entitled to the stock options, the total estimated fair value of the stock HEHbgtAnrBEEBIESRTHEEH
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the M- rERINERESHEBENR L -
probability that the options will vest.

(iv) Termination benefits (iv) #ILEREEF

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group
demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

RIFHERSEAREEREBES - A8
BAKARERMA)ET 4R LB B A IR
EZAtEERERMEE MR LA LR
fEERTER o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(i)

(iif)

significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised directly in equity, in
which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)

1 significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EFEEHBER @

(r)  Provisions and contingent liabilities (n ZEERIAREE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount INRAR RIS AL B AR E AR F
when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation BEESETED  AMESSEREE
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of LM B IRING - R LAEL ] 51
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable fhETE - AR RIRASBEEES iz Esk
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, BT ENBETIRER - WREEEH
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected BEEKX @ AIEETFE L WA IRER I E
to settle the obligation. 1# o
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be RSB LB Rz M B IR B A] BE 18R
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is K- Sk EEABEEEL ISR
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of i EgRZEBREAIAAE  BE
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will TRINREY AT BE MEAR(E BIBR AN o INRAEE
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more NEBERTE RIS RARAKREHREE
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the ETREBEEESRTFE  TEHEEANEE
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. & - BEIRINRE A ge MR BIBR AN o

(s) Revenue recognition (s) WARBR
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group i aE B Al e 2 RAAREE - mMiliaE &
and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, AN (RRER) RER] SEAtE R - IS E SR
revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows: BTy EEFERPRER

(i) Sale of goods (i) SHE WA
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the customers’ HERATRE R EAIBEENL LS
premises which is taken to be the point in time when the customer has BT BEEEXERRBBRRETUAA
accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards of ownership. IR - SHEWA D BIERET - BB &E
Revenue excludes value added tax, beer duty and consumption tax mit - WEAHBRABE ST RRE
and is after deduction of any trade discounts and returns.

(ii)  Interest income (ii) FIE WA
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest MEWATIREBREFNZEAE o
method.

(iii) Rental income from operating leases (iiiy KEHEEMERZEASHA
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit REEEHEmMEK ZHSIA - TIAE
or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease term. BEREAFTRE 2 25T AR - KEHE
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral EREEE T ERTIRM R FHEREE
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. K—E o EiEmP R -

(t)  Translation of foreign currencies (t) HIEEHBR

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or 10ss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the foreign exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised directly in a separate component of equity. Goodwill arising
on consolidation of a foreign operation is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

ERIASMERETT 2 X5+ AR S B 25
ERIAE - DN I EE R B
& BIEEE A 2 SMEERIAE - BB
T AR -

PASMEE IR R AR BRIFE R EERA
BERARZBHINEEL RETHE -

SN ZETE AR TR B AR 5 H ) HE R AR
MEXME LB  EEABRMARR
RHEAMERIGE LB - IELNEN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(t)

(u)

(v)

significant accounting policies (continued)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items that in
substance form part of the net investment in a foreign operation,
together with any related tax, are reclassified from profit or loss to
equity on consolidation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences recognised in equity which relate to that foreign
operation is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered
to be related to the Group if:

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise significant influence
over the Group in making financial and operating policy decisions, or
has joint control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in which the
Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management personnel of the Group or
the Group's parent, or a close family member of such an individual, or
is an entity under the control, joint control or significant influence of
such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i) or is an
entity under the control, joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the benefit of
employees of the Group or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.
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(vi)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1

(w)

significant accounting policies (continued)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged
either in providing products or services (business segment), or in
providing products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and
rewards that are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group'’s internal financial reporting system, the
Group has chosen geographical segment information as the primary
reporting format for the purposes of these financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis to that segment. For example, segment assets
may include inventories, trade receivables and property, plant and
equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are
determined before intra-group balances and intra-group transactions
are eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except to the extent
that such intra-group balances and transactions are between group
entities within a single segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period
to acquire segment assets (both tangible and intangible) that are
expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents, financial
and corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, corporate and
financing expenses.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following new interpretations and an
amendment to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company:

— HK(IFRIC) 11, HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury share transactions
— HK(IFRIC) 12, Service concession arrangements

— HK(IFRIC) 14, HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined benefit asset,
minimum funding requirements and their interaction

— Amendment to HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement, and HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures
— Reclassification of financial assets

These HKFRS developments have had no material impact on the Group’s
financial statements as either they were consistent with accounting
policies already adopted by the Group or they were not relevant to the
Group's operations.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period (note 37).

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R AR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREBERI - IRBEETE)
3  Turnover 3 Exw
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and distribution REBZEFEXBABERDHBE -
of bottled, canned and draught beers. R AR o
As the Group’s turnover is entirely attributable to these activities, no AR AEELHERBIREZEET
analysis by activity is provided. M IR A R TSR S AT o
Turnover represents the invoiced value of products sold, net of XIS EEM R ZRENRT
discounts, returns, beer duty and consumption tax. R0 R R G o
4 Other revenue and other net (expenses)/ 4 HfugAREM A% S
income #
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Other revenue Ha g A
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZFBWA 9,460 14,248
Rental income HE WA 5,506 5,388
14,966 19,636
Other net (expenses)/income Hity (BAk) W5
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, HE¥ZE - #25 K&E
plant and equipment 2% (B518) /&F (375) 147
Net loss on disposal HEHMAREE
of other tangible assets ZFEE (4,182) (3,897)
Net foreign exchange gain M 5,55 A 1,655 3,063
Others i 1,709 1,159
(1,193) 472
5 Impairment losses of non-current assets 5 FRDHEEZERESH
Impairment losses of non-current assets represent: JEMBNEE 2B ERBEIE
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Non-current assets relating to BBREN(ER)EH
San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery ERAB([ENER])
Company Limited (“SMGB") XBHERBEE
operations (notes (a) and (b)) (K 5E (@) F(b) 290,000 17,750
Other tangible assets HEMEFEE 1,959 1,911
291,959 19,661

FEENEERAER R A

—BENFEFER




(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

5 Impairment losses of non-current assets
(Continued)

(@)

During the year, the Directors noted that the decline in demand
for the products of one of the Company’s subsidiaries, SMGB,
compared to previous forecasts of expected growth in sales
and the operating losses that consequently arose were
indications that non-current assets relating to SMGB operations
comprising fixed assets, intangible assets, other tangible assets
and goodwill that arose from the acquisition of an additional
interest in SMGB may be impaired. In view of this, the Directors
prepared a cash flow projection to estimate the recoverable
amount of these assets. The Directors concluded that it is
appropriate to recognise an impairment loss of $290,000,000
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against these assets, with details as follows: AL 18 /85 18 290,000,0007T » #1510
™

2008

Note $'000

B o Fr

Fixed assets & & E 14(a) 264,284

Intangible assets EmEE 15 10,992

Goodwill = 16 5,044

Other tangible assets HihERAE 18 9,680

290,000

The recoverable amount of SMGB operations has been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on business plans approved
by the Directors covering a period of seven years. SMGB's
performance in 2008 was adversely affected by external factors
including counterfeit products, economic downturn and poor
weather conditions and it is expected that certain of these
unfavourable factors would continue to affect SMGB after 2008.
The Directors believe that a longer time is required for SMGB to
return its operations to a stable level and therefore, it is
appropriate to use a seven-year business plan for estimating
the recoverable amount. Cash flows beyond the seven-year plan
period and up to the end of the remaining useful life of SMGB'’s
plant are extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3%. This
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate
for the PRC.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation:

Sales volume growth rate 0-6%
Gross contribution rate 36-46%
Pre-tax discount rate 11.45%

Management determined the growth rate and gross contribution
rate based on past experience as well as future expected market
trends.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group identified
certain machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures of SMGB
with an aggregate net book value of $17,750,000 that had
become obsolete. As a result, a full provision for impairment
loss had been recognised (note 14(a)). In addition to this
impairment loss, in 2007, the Group also recognised impairment
loss for fixed assets of its brewery in Hong Kong, further details
are disclosed in note 7.
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B 5 R 2= M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  ARBEHE)
6 Loss before taxation 6 MRRAER
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRERTEBEE R GIA) THIER -
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
T Tz
(@) Finance costs (a) B ER
Interest expenses on bank loans RITEFRZFBERAX 14,739 9,702
Bank charges iR7 ;%i}ﬁ 920 218
15,659 9,920
(b) Staff costs (b) 8 T %7 M
Retirement costs RIKE PR
— Defined contribution — ERRMR
retirement plans RIKETE 6,027 6,055
— Defined benefit — TR
retirement plan (note 26(a)(v)) BORET 8 (FFEE26(a)(V) 3,558 7,959
9,585 14,014
Equity-settled share-based IR AFHE
payment expenses & Al — 162
Salaries, wages e TERHA
and other benefits & 91,656 105,510
Severance payments (note 7) BB (M) — 18,860
101,241 138,546
(©) Other items (@) HIEE
Amortisation b e
— Land lease premium — HE LB 2,459 2,563
— Other tangible assets — Hib B EE 14,945 13,076
Depreciation e
— Property, plant — W - HE3
and equipment &S 55,764 64,744
— Investment properties — REYE 2,219 2,216
Cost of inventories (note 19) FERA (H5E19) 320,320 347,382
Operating lease charges: KEHEER
minimum lease payments RIEEEMK
— Land and buildings — T EEE 3,044 3,341
— Plant and machinery — B K Es 432 419
Rental receivable wE Y
from investment properties ZHSWANGREEZER
less direct outgoings 2,327,000 (ZEZ L4 -
of $2,327,000 (2007: $2,355,000) 2,355,0007T) (3,179) (3,033)
Auditors’ remuneration ZE R B
— Provision for the year — RNFEEEME 2,900 2,725
— Under-provision — T FFEEE
in respect of prior year DR 740 181
Impairment losses of trade JEUE 5 BRIE 2 BB E1E
receivables, net of reversal (B #1%&) (BiEfE
(included in “Other operating [Hbe &)
expenses”) (note 20(b)) (Mg 5E20(0)) 2,989 4,926
BBE NG BEAR A A

—EEN\FER




(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

7

Restructuring costs

On 30 September 2007, the brewing operations of the Company’s
brewery in Yuen Long, Hong Kong (“Yuen Long plant”) ceased due to its
relatively high production and operating costs as compared to the
brewery of SMGB, another brewery of the Group, in the PRC. Beer
products previously produced by the Yuen Long plant are supplied by
SMGB's brewery. The related fixed assets of the Yuen Long plant had
become idle since the cessation of the brewing operations.

Based on the business forecasts of the Group prepared in 2007, the
management planned to restart the brewing operations of the Yuen
Long plant in April 2009 after taking into account the forecasted business
growth and the gradual alignment of the production and operating costs
between the Yuen Long plant and SMGB's plant as a result of the
continued inflation experienced in the PRC, the appreciation of the
Renminbi and the removal of excise duty on beer products in Hong
Kong.

As a result of the above restructuring exercise, the management
reviewed the recoverable amount of the fixed assets of the Yuen Long
plant and the carrying amount of such assets was written down by
$285,000,000 to the value in use as at 31 December 2007. Value in use
of the assets was calculated using the discounted value of the projected
future cash flows to be generated over the remaining useful life of the
plant. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the projected future cash
flows of the plant was 9.91%.

In addition to the above impairment loss, the Group incurred other
expenses in relation to the restructuring amounting to $25,220,000 in
2007. A summary of the restructuring costs is set out below:

B 7% #R R M 5L

(= BERI - GRBEHE)

E#HX

RZZZTLFNA=TH  AARIREE
JT BAEEE i ([T BAIR R ) Y B 38 {E 4R
1E - BERARTRBR 2 £ E k& B
RENERER - BIAREEZAFRHA
HEMBEREE =S o ARTRITEEREE
B REEER 2 m 2R A ) BB SR A R (L E o T
BB AEEEE A E - BRIEEER—
BEREBEHA -

BREAEER -ZZT tif’ﬁﬁ MR T5 I8
i BEEFSN -_TZENFHAEHNH
ATTEAE R E(F Er&%)ﬁi'ﬁﬁiﬁ%%
BREALARTPBEBEFRSE AR
B FHEMIT B BUE B A B R h 6 R
AR o0 T 28 BT BA D A ) R SR BB R Y
KEREERAZEHBR -

HR EEANTTE - AEBR T T
ERmEEEENAKEEEE TR _F
tEF L EBEEENE@ERK
285,000,000 = HEE - EEMER
EELSBEORES TR ERFHA
AR RRIR S RERGTHEIREE - &
EE AR BB AR RIES RENRE
ATERIR K 59.91% °

BRIA LRERIRSN  AEBR -T2 F
RIS HEB A AR E M S H /325,220,000
T BHAEREAENT

2007
$'000
Ft

Impairment loss on fixed assets EEEERMERSE
(note 14(a) and (b)) (M3 5E14(a) R (b)) 285,000
Severance payments (note 6(b)) ERE (F3E6(D) 18,860

Additional rental charge IR

for warehouse e 3,205
Loss on disposal of raw materials [R# R E E5 1R 961
Legal and professional fees FEREEEA 557
Others E 1,637
_______________________________________________________ 2020
310,220

As at 31 December 2008, there was no restructuring costs remained
unpaid (2007: $2,794,000 remained unpaid and was included in “Other
creditors and accrued charges”).

Yuen Long plant restarted brewing operations in April 2009 (see note
33).

R-BENF+_A=1— B $‘§II
BRERAZNHEEARX (CETAF
MR Z AR 452,794,0007T - SWE A
[EMEMNRERIA )

TEERERN —ERNF A B FHIGEE
EIE(RKIEESS) -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(a)

B 5 R 2= M 5

(FrmEHERIN - BIBERE)

Income tax in the consolidated income 8 HFAKEKRZMER
statement
Taxation in the consolidated income statement HmAEWBERZFBHEMNT :
represents:
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
T Tz
Current tax N R TR
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BEBREH
Provision for the year INFE A — (107)
Over-provision in respect of prior years o] B 25 16
T 2 S L)
Deferred tax (note 27(b)(i)) IEFERE (i &E27(b)(i))
Origination and reversal TREREOHBRR
of temporary differences (=] ¢ 57,695 52,827
Effect of decrease in tax rate HETRZIEE
on deferred tax balance - 439 2,784
_____________________________________________ 58,134 = 55611
Income tax credit FriS & et A 58,159 55,520

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2008 has been made for the
Company and other Hong Kong subsidiaries either because the
accumulated tax losses brought forward exceed the estimated
assessable profits for the year or the entities sustained losses for
taxation purposes. The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2007
was calculated at 17.5% of the estimated assessable profits of one of
the Hong Kong subsidiaries for that year.

No provision for the PRC taxation has been made for the subsidiaries
established in the PRC either because the entities sustained losses for
taxation purposes or the entities were under tax holidays granted in
the relevant tax jurisdictions.

ZANSIDS B ek o)) ST T E
%%IEE?TEE?Q$¢F1$E+F&‘E%E%flJ‘Eﬁ‘
SHBER - Eﬁlﬂf??/\iiﬁﬂim%%
ﬂ STUELEE - R LFHNEER
%RJB&E”EZEFZﬁEF BRMBAR
ﬁﬁﬂﬁéﬁﬁn&n%ljbﬁ/‘%%17.5%{@%1% €

B Z R BIRSZ HI P B A B39 f AT R
AREERBRATE G5 RRT AT -
RERVBEE - WA EL P EHAEH
R o

FEENEERAER R A

—EEN\EER




(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(a)

(b)

Income tax in the consolidated income 8
statement (continued)
Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a)

represents: (Continued)

Change in tax rate

In February 2008, the Hong Kong Government announced a decrease
in the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% applicable to the
Group's operations in Hong Kong as from the year ended 31 December
2008. This decrease has been taken into account in the preparation of
the Group’s and the Company'’s 2008 financial statements. Accordingly,
the opening balances of deferred tax relating to the Group’s and the
Company'’s operations in Hong Kong have been re-estimated.

In March 2007, the National People’s Congress of the PRC passed the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (“new tax law”). Under the new
tax law, the income tax rate applicable to the Group’s operations in the
PRC changed from 27% to 25% from 1 January 2008. The decrease had
been taken into account in the preparation of the Group's 2007 financial
statements. Accordingly, the deferred tax relating to the Group’s

operations in the PRC had been re-estimated.

B 7% #R R M 5L

(= BERI - GRBEHE)

FelaRZMBR®
GEWBRZABHEUOT : (®

BRBE

:%gﬂiiﬂ'ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ

1SHLR17.5% NFHZE16.5% Mt & EiE
%F$%@mﬁi_?7ﬂi+ A=+
—HUFEZBBEY - MEEAKEK
ARBZTFT N\FUHRER EEEE
ﬁ%ﬁ T o FEAEERAREEF
BEBE RN FI REVIRER IR
m%uiﬁ&ﬁ

R-BEZLF=F dEZBARARKERK
SRB(PFEARLMECEMBRE)
G%ﬁinomfﬁmﬁ P N/NC [veee!
B 5 AR B A B R A FTS B R 27% B
“ETN\FE—F—HBET A25% o PR
FIANEE —_ZTLFHHRER BEZF
EARETH - At - AEERPEIRZE
TS AE A IR B I AR FE M T LA B FTATA o

Reconciliation between income tax credit and (b) FEHTAESHEEZHEG
accounting loss at applicable tax rates:
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
F TT
Loss before taxation bR % B &S 18 314,185 315,814
Notional tax on loss before BEBRIBE R AER 2
taxation calculated il Ry i
at the rates applicable BB RIS EAE
to the tax jurisdictions concerned ZhEriEIE 66,733 54,914
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses Ak AT 2 BT E (6,972) (11,304)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue IERBMUWAZ R BT E 1,828 3,340
Tax effect of tax losses RELEEFL B RER
and temporary differences TRIEE 1R &
not recognised TRHUEEZR
for deferred tax purposes ZIIER (1,129) (989)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses 1 A R 1R
not previously recognised RIBEE 2 — 6,759
Effect of decrease in tax rate TR 218
on deferred tax balance oE 439 2,784
Others HAh (2,765) =
Over-provision of current tax in FFEEEHHIE
respect of prior years EIEz 25 16
Actual tax credit FriSFist A 58,159 55,520

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

B B R AR Y R

(B SHERI - RABESE)

9 Directors’ remuneration 9 EFE
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong RIBFBQRIEGFE1611ER EHARZ
Kong Companies Ordinance and the requirements of the Listing Rules HEBB ESHaT ¢
is as follows:
2008
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e  HeRER HERL  BARESER B3
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Executive director HITEE
Peter K.Y. Tam ERR 1,789 - 104 1,893
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ramon S. Ang £23515°¢ — — — —
Faustino F Galang il — - — —
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SER - — — —
Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia — - - -
Ferdinand K. Constantino RER - — — —
Iwan David Nevyn Evans =M — - - -
Francis H. Jardeleza By - - - -
Cheung Yuen Tak R
Jesusa Victoria Jesusa Victoria
Hernandez-Bautista Hernandez-Bautista — — - -
Thelmo Luis O. Cunanan Jr. Thelmo Luis O. Cunanan Jr. - — - —
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
David K.P Li THE - - - -
Ng Wai Sun RIEH — — - —
Carmelo L. Santiago i3] - - - -
lan F Wade ENR - — - —
1,789 - 104 1,893
EBENEERBERA T

—EEN\FEH




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

B RS R AR Y RE

(EREERIN - BRBEE

9 EEME »

9 Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

2007
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e HEREHR WEBEREL BRSER B%
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Executive directors BiTES:
Chong Yoon Fatt HoKE — 2,004 98 161 2,353
Peter K.Y. Tam (Note) Bk (M) = = — — —
Non-executive directors FHTES:
Ramon S. Ang 245'¢ = = = = =
Faustino F. Galang B = = = = =
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SLER — — — — —
Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia Minerva Lourdes B. Bibonia — — — — =
Ferdinand K. Constantino RER — — — — —
Iwan David Neryn Evans =M — — — — —
Francis H. Jardeleza By — — — — —
Roberto N. Huang =2RR = = = — —
Ma. Belen C. Buensuceso Ma. Belen C. Buensuceso — — — — —
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
David K.P.Li ZEE — — — — —
Ng Wai Sun RUERT = = = — —
Carmelo L. Santiago i3 — — - — —
lan F. Wade EUR — — — — —
- 2,094 98 161 2,353
Note:  Mr. Peter K.Y. Tam was appointed on 31 December 2007 and therefore, Wi : BRREERZZETLF+=-_A=+

none of his emoluments for 2007 was related to his directorship and nil
balance was reported in the above. His emoluments for 2007 of
$1,969,000 were included in the “Individuals with highest emoluments”
disclosure in note 10.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
Annual Report 2008
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10

11

12
(a)

B B R AR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  ARBEHE)
Individuals with highest emoluments 10 HEERBZAR
For 2008, of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one is RZEZ )\i EmaAaABR  —F
director, Mr. Peter K.Y. Tam, whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9. REE  BRRTE (e B R
For 2007, of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two were ) - 75’\\‘: =z ;E‘tﬁ T EEHFABAER
directors namely Mr. Chong Yoon Fatt (whose emoluments were B CEREE  HRIAMKESE (K
disclosed in note 9) and Mr. Peter K.Y. Tam (whose emoluments were MiEEAMTuE‘?BZE%) REEIRE (B
included below (also see note 9)). The aggregate of the emoluments in ERER T (5 RKIFE)) ° Eﬁ%@%
respect of the remaining four individuals (2007: four individuals, (ZZZTLF : I% - BEERRLE) H
including Mr. Peter K.Y. Tam), are as follows: EmmsANBEZNESBELT ¢
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
Fr Tz
Salaries and other emoluments & KoERL 5,712 5,706
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAT — 482
Share-based payments % 7 #6515 18 — 47
Retirement scheme contributions RIRE HER 309 699
6,021 6,934
The emoluments of the four individuals (2007: four individuals, including ME(CEZTLEF : UE - BiEERRL
Mr. Peter K.Y. Tam) with the highest emoluments are within the following E)FERRIABZHMESITAT
bands:
2008 2007
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AEEEH ABEEE
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,0017t & 1,500,0007T 3 1
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,0017t £2,000,0007T — 1
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,0017t £2,500,0007T 1 2
Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the 11 ZF QTSI EAEGER
company
The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders of the ANA B # hﬁ)\ﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁ?él&ﬂ@ BIEEE
Company includes a loss of $191,262,000 (2007: $273,809,000) which 191,262,0007T (ZZZF 4 : 273,809,000
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note JT) E;Hr)\$ AR sk (FisE28(b)) °
28(b)).
Loss per share 12 BERER
Basic loss per share (a) BREXESE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss attributable FREREBIIBBEAQ G EREE AR
to equity shareholders of the Company of $257,769,000 (2007: 15 518 #£257,769,0007t (— T Z L4 ¢
$262,376,000) and on 373,570,560 ordinary shares (2007: 373,570,560 262,376,00073) EARFEE W E BITZ
ordinary shares), being the number of ordinary shares in issue 373,570,560 @k (ZFTZ L F -
throughout the year. 373,570,5600% & 38 % fR) & & ©
Diluted loss per share (b) BEZERER

(b)

The diluted loss per share is not presented as the Company does not
have dilutive potential ordinary shares for both years.

BESREBERYARTIIL  AARFL
BAEABEENEBEEEBARETE

FEENEERAER R A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Bt &R EKMizT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)
13 Segment reporting 13 SERHEER

AEBZE DRI DEERN - BRI
BzoBREEFPHAEMERY -

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s geographical
segments. Information relating to geographical segments based on the
location of customers is chosen.

MR AEE 2 S XRREEXET 2R

HEERDIFEE - BRRBEEE - &
VEREHBAAREZXBEBIDN -

No business segments analysis of the Group is presented as all the
Group's turnover and trading result are generated from the manufacture
and distribution of bottled, canned, and draught beers.

PRC
(excluding
Hong Kong Hong Kong) Others Consolidated
Bk HE (TBEES) Htth &
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'00_0 $'000 $'00_O $'000 $'00_0 $'000 $'00_0
n i r i r 7 r i
Revenue from external customers PREEKA 371,154 334367 374,093 401880 8128 18586 753,375 754,833
Other revenue BREP
from external customers ZEMBA 5,506 5,388 - — - — 5,506 5,388
Total revenue EVON 376,660 339,755 374,093 401,880 8,128 18586 758,881 760,21
Segment results PEEE (10,718)  (27,090) (301,062) 16,404 929 764 (310,851) (9922)
Unallocated operating income AOEEE
and expenses BARRR 12,325 1428
Finance costs SBBER (15,659) (9920
Restructuring costs BERY - (300913) - - - (9,307) - (310220)
Income tax credit FERETA 58,159 55,520
Loss for the year FEER (256,026)  (260,294)
Depreciation and amortisation ERRER
for the year B 44,297 50826 30,643 30,382 447 1,391 75,387 82,599
Impairment losses of/(recovery of REER/ (REEEER)
impairment losses)
— non-current assets — FREEE — 281360 291,959 14,751 - 8550 291,959 304,661
— trade receivables — KB SERE 3,414 6,304 (425) (1,378) - - 2,989 4,926
Segment assets NREE 1,324,472 111,134 281,965 622,832 18,806 33,423 1,625,243 1,767,389
Unallocated assets ABEE 348,462 465922
Total assets BAE 1,973,705 2,233,311
Segment liabilities AEERE 131,675 106733 142,529 110529 1,870 2359 276,074 219621
Unallocated liabilities KAEER 201,679 259,227
Total liabilities Z8& 477,753 478,848
Capital expenditure ERER
incurred during the year A% 84,989 17,032 103,000 64,242 850 32 188,839 81,306
Additional information concerning ~ EHHESE2
geographical segments: EftER
Segment assets BEAERME
by the location of assets fig7 EENE 973,718 969861 651,525 797,528 - — 1,625,243 1,767,389
Capital expenditure BEAERME
incurred during the year EAEL
by the location of assets ERELZARRY 1,861 105 186,978 80,250 - — 188,839 81,308

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Bf#&3RERMIE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  ARBEHE
14 Fixed assets 14 BES&EE
(@) The Group (a) AX&EH
‘ Interests in
Property, plant and equipment leasehold
N 1 U
nx BERER land el
landand  Machinery, for own
buildings  equipment, Use Under
held for furniture Motor  Construction Investment  operating Total
ownuse  and fixtures vehicles in progress Sub-total  properties leases  fixed assets
iy
&% BETEM
AL R R MEANEE  SBHER
REE R BE  ERIR A REWE  DHER BE
$'000 $'000 $/000 $'000 $'000 $/000 $'000 $'000
7 i i 7 i i i i
Cost: B
At 1 January 2007 R-EZt+#-f—-H 871,345 1,404,876 22,569 9170 2,307,960 118,946 113,652 2,540,558
Exchange adjustments SRS 22,439 32,722 1,231 675 57,067 — 317 60,184
Additions HE 15,493 17,400 933 26,487 60,313 = = 60,313
Transfer from construction ERETR
in progress IR 3,659 2,623 — (6,282) — — — —
Disposals e = (13,42) (5,548) = (18,975) — — (18,975)
At 31 December RIZRLE
2007 ﬂ'gﬂ_ij'—_ H_ - 9_12,236_ B _1,454,1_94_ - 1_9,1_85_ N _39,05_0 . 2_,409,3§5_ B _11%9116 - _11@76_9 B _2942})89
Accumulated amortisation, ~ Rit#E#
depreciation FER
and impairment losses: AEER
At 1 January 2007 R-EZt+#-f—-H 176,600 534,119 19,085 = 729,804 29,196 12,181 771,181
Exchange adjustments SRS 5,562 12,236 1,005 = 18,803 — 720 19,523
Charge for the year FRRY 19,276 44,678 790 = 64,744 2216 2,563 69,523
Impairment losses REEE
(see note below) (RO TR 96,308 186,266 99 — 282,673 - 20,077 302,750
Written back on disposal i e = (12,692) (5,115) - (17,807) - - (17,807)
At 31 December RIEZtE
_2907_ - j‘;ﬂ_ij'—_ﬁ_ L 2_97,_746_ B _794,907_ - 1_5,8_64_ = 1L07§,217_ B _31_,41_2 - _35_,5@ B _1,145_,179
Net book value; RERE
At 31 December RZBTtE
2007 T-A=t-H 615,190 679,587 3321 30,050 1,328,148 87,534 81,228 1,496,910
Note:  Of the impairment losses of $302,750,000 for fixed assets, $285,000,000 P EE - & & E R B E518302,750,0007T &
was made against the fixed assets of the Yuen Long plant (note 7) and A+ 285,000,0007T /2 &t ¥ 7T BA I IR &Y
$17,750,000 was made against the fixed assets of SMGB (note 5(b)). EE & E (f45E7) - 517,750,0007T &

A NERWEEEE (HFESD) -

B ENEERERAF
—EE\FER




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | BA#&3RZRMI=T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)
14 Fixed assets (Continued) 14 BEEEE®
(@) The Group (Continued) (@) *K£B@®
Interests in
Property, plant and equipment leasehold
nE BERRE land held
Landand Machinery, for own
buildings equipment, use under
held for  furniture Motor Construction Investment  operating Total
ownuse and fixtures  vehicles inprogress  Sub-total properties leases fixed assets
i
B HETEA
BALH BRR MEEHEE  AHEER
REE #f B EEIR A REWE  thER EE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
r r r r r r r n
Cost: A
At 1 January 2008 RZZZ\E-F—H 912,936 1,444,194 19,185 30,050 2,406,365 118,946 116,769 2,642,080
Exchange adjustments AR 21,304 28,058 872 1,851 52,085 - 2,798 54,883
Additions RE 4,083 19,023 90 148,737 171,933 124 - 172,057
Transfer from construction ERERE
in progress I 2,454 4,442 289 (7,185) - - - -
Reclassification Ed 2,714 (2,714) - - - - - -
Disposals & (2,041)  (11,688) (3,350) - (17,079) - - (17,079
At 31 December RZZZNE
2008 +-A=1+-H - 79{1,{507 - 1i4871,37157 - 711,0?67 - 17737,4573 - 72,§1Zi3(147 B 17197,0770 o 1,19L56,7 - 2,851941
Accumulated amortisation, Rt
depreciation FER
and impairment losses: RESE:
At 1 January 2008 RZZE\E-F—-H 297,746 764,607 15,864 — 1,078,217 31,412 35,541 1,145170
Exchange adjustments ERLAE 5,293 10,257 695 - 16,245 - 681 16,926
Charge for the year ERFEY 18,214 36,332 1,218 - 55,764 2,219 2,459 60,442
Impairment losses (note 5(a)) AEER (ME5() 90,760 104,300 523 56,987 252,570 - M714 264,284
Written back on disposal HERME (2,041) (9,242) (3,159) - (14,442) - - (14,442)
At 31 December RIZENF
o8 FSASTCA 409972 906254 15141 56987 1388354 33631 50,395 1472380
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December RZZEN\%
2008 T-A=t-H 531,478 575,061 1,945 116,466 1,224,950 85,439 69,172 1,379,561
88 San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Bf#&3RERMIE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  ARBEHE)
14 Fixed assets (Continued) 14 BETESEE @
(b) The Company (b) ZA&AF
. Interests in
Property, plant and equipment leasehold
. HESR o i
n%  BERGER land held
Land and Machinery, for own
buildings  equipment, use under
held for furniture Motor  Construction operating Total
ownuse  and fixtures vehicles in progress Sub-total leases  fixed assets
Ez« %Eg
2 TEAM
BRLH LR HANME BEHET
REE HARER B FREIE = TR BE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
Cost; A
At 1 January 2007 W-EELF-F—H 493530 960,758 6,004 15 1,460,307 74,134 1,534,441
Additions NE = 995 61 = 1,056 — 1,056
Transfer from construction ERENR
in progress Ii# — 15 — (15) — — —
Disposals HE — (1,453) (904) — (2,357) - (2,357)
At 31 December RZZTLE
o toRSTCR eSS OO U A L
Accumulated amortisation, Rt
depreciation ER
and impairment losses: RERS:
At 1 January 2007 R-ZEE+F-F—H 96,177 380,366 5438 = 481,981 3,489 485,470
Charge for the year FREY 10,173 29,894 271 = 40,338 1,744 42,082
Impairment losses (note 7) AERE W) 96,308 168,516 99 - 264,923 20,077 285,000
Written back on disposal HERE — (1,415) (903) — (2,318) — (2,318)
At 31 December RZEZtE
aw ToASTTR . Moe8 Tl A - e Bl Hiew
Net book value: BHFE:
At 31 December RZEEtE
2007 +-A=1+-H 290,872 382,954 256 — 674,082 48,824 722,906
BBE NG BEAR A A

—EEN\FER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI - RBEERTHE)
14 Fixed assets (continued) 14 EEE @
(b) The Company (Continued) (b) EAT @
. Interests in
Property, plant and equipment leasehold
IR BRRES land held
Land and Machinery, for own
buildings equipment, use under
held for furniture Motor operating Total
ownuse  and fixtures vehicles Sub-total leases fixed assets
ERERE
B TERMESR
BRLH B HEEL AEE
kEE BRRER ] HEIR i $:3 £
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr r r Fr r Fr
Cost: A
At 1 January 2008 R-ZEE\F-f—H 493,530 960,315 5,161 1,459,006 74,134 1,533,140
Additions NE 218 1,423 - 1,641 - 1,641
Disposals HE - (4,344) (491) (4,835) — (4,835)
At 31 December RZZTN\F
N 290§ __________ ﬂ_':_H_Ej': El_ .. il9§,71187 o 79577,3:947 o 74@79 o 71,{557,8127 o 7711,17347 o LSZ9,24§
Accumulated amortisation, Rt ## -
depreciation FER
and impairment losses: AEES
At 1 January 2008 R-ZZE\F-A—A 202,658 577,361 4,905 784,924 25,310 810,234
Charge for the year ERFEY 7,661 19,450 193 27,304 1,558 28,862
Written back on disposal HERE - (4,176) (490) (4,666) - (4,666)
At 31 December RZZENE
e TASTR v S AG8 8IS 26868 8440
Net book value: BHERE:
At 31 December RZZTNE
2008 +-A=t+—-8 283,429 364,759 62 648,250 47,266 695,516
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  ARBEHE)
14 Fixed assets (Continued) 14 BERE@®
(c) The analysis of net book value of propertiesis as (c) THEEFEZIFAOT :
follows:
The Group The Company
rEH ARAF
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Frx Tt Fr Tz
Medium term leases REAFE S i
— in Hong Kong — &% 491,001 504,052 330,695 339,696
— outside Hong Kong — BB 195,088 279,900 — —
686,089 783,952 330,695 339,696
Representing: DTER
Land and buildings held BRI X
for own use BE 531,478 615,190 283,429 290,872
Investment properties wEYZE 85,439 87,534 — —
Interests in leasehold FEEHETHA
land held for own use [lIESEER:0kN-4
under operating leases THbRE RS 69,172 81,228 47,266 48,824
686,089 783,952 330,695 339,696
(d) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases (d KEHETZBEEEE
The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases. AEERBLCEHEHEEMZELA -
The leases typically run for an initial period of two to three years, with HFER—RAE-E=F  AEENEHA
an option to renew the lease after that date at which time all terms are BRERTL - B ER R PTA R -
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. MY I 2EXAES -
The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non- AN EIRR A AT EE A = 10 & e 2 R
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows: REEHREMAT -
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Within 1 year —FR 4,588 4,180
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFA 4,525 1,492
9,113 5,672

(e) The fair value of the investment properties at 31 December 2008 is (@) REVEN-—_ZFENF+-_A=+—H2

$95,090,000 (2007: $95,590,000), which are valued on an open market 5B {E /595,090,000 (ZTZ 4 :
basis assuming sale with existing tenancies by using the investment 95,590,0007T) * LA T{EALERIEL T
method and otherwise with vacant possession by using the sales o WRIRABLOHEMRBMERATE
comparison approach. The valuation was carried out by an independent EHEITHE KRR EIE R SRR
firm of surveyors, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, who have among FRAHE L BUEEITHE - METDBBEL
their staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent RIS RMITASEITRIZRN B R A AT - H
experience in the location and category of property being valued. BEREABIEMBENEEXEE £

Pt E RS MR M AR R B A FTT AR o

FEENEERAER R A

—EEN\EER




(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

15

B 7% #R R M 5L

(= BERI - GRBEHE)

Intangible assets 15 \ERE
The Group The Company
rEE N
Club Club
Trademarks debentures Total  Trademarks debentures Total
[L: BFEER Bt [ BFERER &t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000.
Fr Tr Tr Fr Tr Fr
Cost: A
At 1 January 2007 R-ZZt+5—H—-H 39116 6,106 45,222 39116 5,031 44,147
Exchange adjustments B R E — 79 79 — — —
At 31 December i e
2007 +-A=F-H 39,116 6,185 45,301 39,116 5,031 44,147
Accumulated amortisation:  BiH##
At 1 January RZZE+5-F—H
and 31 December 2007 E+ZA=+-H 5,658 — 5,658 5,658 — 5,658
Net book value: RERE:
At 31 December i e
2007 +-A=+-H 33,458 6,185 39,643 33,458 5,031 38,489
Cost: A
At 1 January 2008 R-EF)\E-A-H 39,116 6,185 45,301 39,116 5,031 44,147
Exchange adjustments BRAZ - Al 71 - - -
At 31 December RZZZNE
_290§ __________ f:_ﬂ_Ej':El 777777 32,1]6 77777 6 ,ESQ o 11553‘7} o 7397,1167 o 75.07317 o 4},}42
Accumulated amortisation ~ Eif##R
and impairment losses: AEES !
At 1 January 2008 RZZENF-F—-H 5,658 - 5,658 5,658 - 5,658
Impairment losses (note 5(a)) REEE (:5a) 10,992 - 10,992 10,992 - 10,992
At 31 December RZZZNE
oo TZAStR 16650 — 16650 18650 — 16630
Net book value: RERE:
At 31 December RZZTNE
2008 +-A=t+—-8 22,466 6,256 28,722 22,466 5,031 27,497

Trademarks relate to products produced by SMGB and are regarded as
having indefinite useful lives because the trademarked products are
expected to generate net cash inflows to the Group indefinitely.

During the year, an impairment loss of $10,992,000 has been made for
trademarks by both the Company and the Group, further details are
set out in note 5(a). Consideration of impairment test for trademarks
for 2007 is set out in note 16.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  ARBEHE)
16 Goodwill 16 W&
The Group
REE
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
Fx T
Cost BN 5,044 5,044
Less: Impairment losses (note 5(a)) B OREEE (T EE5) (5,044) =
— 5,044

17

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of an additional interest in SMGB.

Consideration of impairment test for goodwill for 2008 is set out in
note 5(a). Consideration of impairment test for goodwill and trademarks
which were allocated to SMGB operations for impairment test purposes
for 2007 is set out below.

For 2007, the recoverable amount of SMGB operations had been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation used
cash flow projections based on the five-year long range plan approved
by management, and a pre-tax discount rate of 9.91%. Cash flows
beyond that five-year period had been extrapolated using a zero growth
rate. Management believed that any reasonably possible change in the
key assumptions on which the recoverable amount was based would
not cause carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation:

Sales volume growth rate 25%
Gross contribution rate 41%
Pre-tax discount rate 9.91%

Management determined the growth rate and gross contribution rate
based on the expectation for market development.

EEDHNEBENER 2 EmmEL °

B _ZTN\FORERERAEME

5@MHA - B _ZZLFURENE
ROEB 2 EERARRER AT
B o

ZETLF  EHERFEBH A EKEEE
DIRBFERABEEAEMNETE - ZFEABE
TR BRRESEIEN A FEEREIME
HIEEME » WA9.91% 4% Fi Bl BE IR &
mat®E - AFsrElEMNRERE - TER
fi‘ﬁiﬁﬁ c BEREMREEERZNEG
AREEE e | BREmER RN E T EK
ﬁE °

AEEREERAANIERR

HESRER 25%
FE = 41%
B 54 A G 3R K 9.91%

ERERBAERRREHMSERNTE
HETFREEREMNE -

Investments in subsidiaries 17 WBELFER
The Company
VNN

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
T T
Unlisted investments, at cost JE ETRRRD (R A) 603,249 603,249
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE Y /B8 2 R BR 1B 781,290 777,930
1,384,539 1,381,179
Less: Impairment losses B OREEE (392,978) (209,978)
991,561 1,171,201

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed repayment terms. The entire balance is expected to be
recovered after more than one year.

RGP Tﬁlﬁi’]#ﬂﬁiﬁ B RR
BREEERY - RHREHNERREE—F
&UmE -

FEENEERAER R A

—EEN\EER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)
17 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 17 MEBaRER @
As detailed in note 5(a), impairment losses have been recognised during RIFHT FES@) TR © AREAE N ERSE
the year in respect of the non-current assets associated with SMGB BIEEMIEREEE 2 7] B IS E NKim
operations as a result of the decline of the recoverable amount of these BRZEEENRAME - BEBERASE
assets below their carrying amount. Consequently, the Directors ERR At EZREARRBNEEN
concluded that there is an impairment of the Company’s investment in BROKEEMBE - MRERSISE
SMGB and an impairment loss of $183,000,000 has been recognised 183,000,000 T A AN E TR o
during the year.
The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the TREINARABIMENRBATIER -
Company:
Place of Issued share Proportion of
incorporation/ capital/registered ownership Principal
Name of company operation capital interest held by activity
FriERER DL
EMZ, BEITRE Company  Subsidiary
NGIEE 4 3y B &R AT MiEA A FTEEK
Best Investments British Virgin 50,000 100% — Investment
International Inc. Islands ordinary shares holding
of US$1 each
REBREAES 50,0004% & R E (& ®E
1ETZERR
60,000,000 100% —

preference shares
of US$1 each

60,000,000%
BRREE
1ETZBER
Guangzhou San PRC Registered capital: — 70% Distribution
Miguel Brewery US$36,507,000 of beer
Company Limited
(note (i)
BN A D e Sh A R A & A AR : H & B
(B =) 36,507,000 7T
Hongkong Brewery Hong Kong 100 100% — Dormant
Limited ordinary shares
of $1 each
BB 100A% EmeEz
BREE
1T Z &R
Ravelin Limited Hong Kong 10,000,000 100% — Property
ordinary shares holding
of $1 each
BB 10,000,000(% FEYE
BREE
17T 2 B iR

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  ARBEHE)
17 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 177 HMELAFES @
Place of Issued share Proportion of
incorporation/ capital/registered ownership Principal
Name of company operation capital interest held by activity
FiERER 2
AR BRITRE Company  Subsidiary
NGRS R i B =t it & A< AT Ff$ B A = FTEEHK
San Miguel Hong Kong 18,000 92.989% — Investment
(Guangdong) class "A” shares holding
Limited of US$500 each
8 (BER) aBb 18,000% AR
BRAA SR EES00E 7T
Z (A
1,000 100% ==
class “B” shares
of $1 each
1,0000% & i E &
17T 2 (B
San Miguel (Guangdong) PRC Registered capital: — 100% Manufacture
Brewery Company Limited US$39,933,000 and sale of
(note (ii)) beer
H7 (BR) BEAFR A A] A [ERR N (295
(D) 39,933,000% 7T SH S 18R
San Miguel Shunde Hong Kong 200,000 92% — Investment
Holdings Limited ordinary shares holding
of $10 each
BB 200,0004% "EZER
FHREE107T
2 E kK
Notes: MizE
(i) Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited (“GSMB”) is an equity (i) BN A DB A PR A Bl Ty AR |l 2 M
joint venture formed between the Company’s subsidiary, San Miguel BRARAENE (BER) AR A A EEM
(Guangdong) Limited, and Guangzhou Brewery. According to the joint BHEBK 2 EEEE AT c BRIES
venture agreement, GSMB has an operating period of 30 years expiring BEEm®  ZARZKEERR=T
on 29 November 2020. F RZEZEF+—A=TNBE
o
(ii) San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited is a wholly-foreign (ii) EH(BR)MBERARAZINEH
owned enterprise with an operating period of 50 years expiring on 4 ¥ BAEKEHPRTE BN-T
August 2042. M=/ \AWEBEEm °
BERENSERER AT

—EEN\EER
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(= BERI - GRBEHE)

HEthARE

HibAWEEDRTEMBRRMERZ
R KB EE -

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

18 Other tangible assets 18

Other tangible assets represent returnable bottles and crates used by
the Group’s operations in the PRC.

The Group
rEH
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Cost: A
At 1 January ®n—HA—H 89,790 82,116
Exchange adjustments PE 5 S B 5,899 7,931
Additions NE 16,782 20,993
Disposals e (16,701) (21,250)
At31Decemper R t=A=tTH_________________ 95,770 S50
Accumulated amortisation and o ROmE
impairment losses: BE

At 1 January ®n—HA—AH 36,626 33,116
Exchange adjustments bE 5 S & 2,624 4,623
Charge for the year FARE 14,945 13,076
Impairment losses (note 5) B E & B (M EES) 11,639 1,911
Written back on disposal & (11,256) (16,100)
At31December  ____Wt=A=t-®H 54,578 _ © 820
Net book value: BREDFE
At 31 December ®w+=-—A=+—H 41,192 53,164

h B A B AT 2 AR IR & (R
2o - BRBHEZAERFRO A —F

Almost all bottled beer sold in the PRC are under returnable bottles
arrangement. The bottles and crates are expected to have useful lives

of two years and seven years respectively. Rt o
19 Inventories 19 &
The Group The Company
rEEH RAF

2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $°000 $'000 $°000
Fx Tt Fr Tt
Products in hand and in process REEmMREHD 34,474 24,000 14,033 6,747
Materials and supplies Yk R it e 30,500 16,027 — —
64,974 40,027 14,033 6,747

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  ARBEHE)
19 Inventories (Continued) 19 HFE®
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is as EERAARAIZFESBINAT
follows:
The Group
rEH
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Carrying amount of inventories sold LEGFEREE 320,320 347,221
Write down of inventories 15 & HUR — 161
320,320 347,382
20 Trade and other receivables 20 BERERSREMRER
The Group The Company
rEH PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T Fr Tt
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BRI 116,092 115,062 94,378 89,768
Less: Allowance for doubtful W REEREE
debts (note 20(b)) (Bt 7 (20(b)) (35,289) (32,816) (25,616) (23,149)
80,803 82,246 68,762 66,619
Other debtors, deposits o fth fE U AR
and prepayments e RBIHIEA 22,783 44,449 9,198 14,735
103,586 126,695 77,960 81,354
The amount of the Group’s and the Company’s deposits and REERARRNBITERZ R —Fgr ke
prepayments expected to be recovered or charged as expense after ?DB%?Z%?Z&E’J&%&?EH KBS RN B A
more than one year is $1,108,000 (2007: $1,113,000) and $553,000 (2007: 1,108,0007t (ZZ =&+ 4 : 1,113,0007T)
$553,000) respectively. All of the other trade receivables, other debtors, X:.553,0007T (ZZEZ 4 : 553,0007T) °
deposits and prepayments are expected to be recovered or charged FRE B e E 5 R A MR - e Kk
as expense within one year. TEF FRIBTERT £ — F A AT Y B Sk B fE &
}Eﬁ °
The Group and the Company hold the following collaterals over trade
receivables at the balance sheet date: REERANQRELAEE B EKE 5 RIE
BHEUTHERR
The Group The Company
rEH ¥ NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Frx Tt Fr Tz
Buildings L ES 16,697 17,029 16,470 16,340
Cash deposits HWEFR 12,362 13,236 1,271 1,383
Bank guarantees RITHER 900 1,800 900 1,800
BBE NG BEAR A A

—EEN\EER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)
20 Trade and other receivables (continued) 20 ERRSIRHEMBE @
(a) Ageing analysis (@) RS
The ageing of trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) FEWE 58RI (FBR REERR B MR) A& E A
as of the balance sheet date is as follows: ZHREAT ¢
The Group The Company
rER AATR
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr FT Fr Ft
Current R E|ER 58,968 67,840 49,926 55,738
Less than 1 month past due BHR DR —1E A 11,302 722 11,166 —
1 to 3 months past due BEHBA—Z=EA 1,279 926 1,010 —
More than 3 months but less BHBEAE=ZEARZE
than 12 months past due —FR 1,034 521 578 461
More than 12 months past due BEHAZR—F 8,220 12,237 6,082 10,420
80,803 82,246 68,762 66,619
The Group's credit policy is set out in note 29(a). ANEE 2 EEBERS R M E29(a)
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) EUWESREZBEESE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using EHAEKE SRR RBEERS BEER
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of L8k - BRIEARS B MR EGR BRI E
the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off K o FEULIER T - BEBESEELER
against trade receivables directly (see note 1()(i)). 2 5 RRIER s (BHEE10)0) ©
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year is FARERBENESHOT
as follows:
The Group The Company
rER RAR
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Frx T
At 1 January ®n—HA—H 32,816 27,495 23,149 17,189
Exchange adjustments PE 5 S & 594 703 — —
Impairment loss recognised B e 1B FE R 3,567 6,304 3,414 6,304
Impairment loss written back BB ETE R B (578) (1,378) — —
Uncollectible amounts written off patk= RGN el (1,110) (308) (947) (344)
At 31 December R+=-—BA=+—H 35,289 32,816 25,616 23,149

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  ARBEHE)
20 Trade and other receivables (continued) 20 BERRSREMIRR®
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (Continued) (b) EWEBREZBERRE (®
At 31 December 2008, the Group’s and the Company's trade receivables RZZEZENFF+ZA=+—0 ' x&EEK
of $46,589,000 (2007: $46,648,000) and $34,582,000 (2007: $34,096,000) PN/ 77'1—})75”51,%% BRIAH #146,589,0007T
respectively were individually determined to be impaired. The (ZZEZEF : 46,648,0007m) &
individually impaired receivables were balances in disputes with 34,582,0007T (== E 4 : 34,096,000
customers or relating to customers that were in financial difficulties 7C) R B Bl W TE R (E o M Bl Y RLE B 1R =
and management assessed that only a portion of the receivables is HARZARME EAERE - MEEERET
expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for K /\E*B{Q%’UETLM&@ RSB AN
doubtful debts of $35,289,000 (2007: $32,816,000) and $25,616,000 AR FD BIET 35,289,000t (ZFEZE
(2007: $23,149,000) were recognised by the Group and the Company @ 32,816,00075) %.25,616,0007T (=&
respectively. The Group and the Company hold the following collaterals T4F ¢ 23,149,0007T) A RIEZEAR B o &
over these balances: S B RA R BB L FEWGRAE R I B T
mIAE
The Group The Company
rEH PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T Fr T
Buildings /S 6,847 9,034 6,620 8,660
Cash deposits WEGFR 904 2,344 — 300
(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (c) REEBEEEZENRESKRE
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually A VERE & 18 2 FE W 8 5 AR TR R e 40
nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows: N
The Group The Company
rEH PN/
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tt Fr T
Neither past due nor impaired ___ AREIMRAEREE 57,320 mEIE I 18.677 NS
Less than 1 month past due BHERIR—EA 10,777 287 10,697 —
1 to 3 months past due BHEA—Z==EA 690 858 422 —
More than 3 months but less BHBEAR=EA
than 12 months past due E—FR 457 60 — —
More than 12 months past due BHEAZNT @A 259 619 — —
oo 283182 M9 -
69,503 68,414 59,796 55,672
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide REEAR MER B 2 EWE SRE - 945
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default. AR B R E RS E S - PTATE
B o
BN ERARA A

—EEN\FER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)
20 Trade and other receivables (continued) 20 BERRSREMIER®
(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (Continued) (c) XREFEREBBZEWESKRIE®
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of MEENMERE 2 EWE SRIEES R E
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. RIFERRHMERNESHR o BUEL
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment 5% AREGETESEANNE  EHE[E
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not S EARELEFTIREL G - RRIR
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still BELA R 2D - NEE KA
considered fully recoverable. The Group and the Company hold the NAEIFLA EFEWRERIFHBAROT ¢
following collaterals over these balances:
The Group The Company
rER AAR
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tt Frx T+
Cash deposits BRE TR 349 315 — —

21 Amounts due from/(to) holding companies and 21 BIRREMFZEBEATREARME

fellow subsidiaries ATFRIE

Amounts due from/(to) holding companies and fellow subsidiaries are B N3 E S FIRBIRE S IERZ TN - FE
unsecured, interest-free and do not have fixed repayment terms except W sk FESHERR A R & B Z KB A 51 BRIEY
for the following trade-related amounts which are repayable under EmER EEREREEERDY -

normal trade terms:

The Group The Company
rEH PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
T Tt T Tt
Amounts due from holding FEM AR A B &2
companies and fellow subsidiaries B X8 7 RE 1,462 26 1,452 26
Amounts due to holding companies EAER AT R
and fellow subsidiaries B R B AR ARIE (1,839) (18,282) (1,197) (16,985)
The trade related balances are not past due as at 31 December 2007 HESHACEFR _EZENFR_EZ
and 2008. tE+T-A=+—HIRENE -
22 Pledged deposits and cash and cash 22 ENER BeREFFAHR&LEAH
equivalents
(a) Pledged deposits (a) EHER
At 31 December 2008, no bank deposit (2007: $18,696,000) is pledged RZEZENE+=-A=+—8 ' BEHRT
to secure bank guarantees. TR (CEELE ¢ 18,696,0007T) BIER

RITEEMERTR?T -

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

22

(b)

23

24

Pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

(FrmEHERIN - BIBERE)

22 ENER REeRFRARLHEHE
()

(b) BE&RZEFELER

The Group The Company
rEH A FE]

2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tt Fr Tt
Deposits with banks RITIF K 286,303 383,155 — —
Cash at bank and in hand RITHEERIRS 60,134 63,013 10,869 11,988
346,437 446,168 10,869 11,988

Bank loans (unsecured)

At 31 December 2008, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

23 RITHEK (WEH)
R-FFNE+-A=+—A ' RITEK

AR THIEAREE :
The Group The Company
rEE RAF]

2008 2007 2008 2007

$'000 $°000 $'000 $°000

Fr Tt Fr Tt

within 1 year —FR 186,146 193,780 — 95,000
The bank loans are rolled-over on a monthly basis and bear interest at IRITERAT ARRAEM - RZZTZEN
floating rate applicable to the roll-over period, which ranged from 3.16% F+-—A=+—8" Efféiafé\ Hﬁﬁﬂ%@f‘

t0 6.57% as at 31 December 2008 (2007: 6.15% t0 6.48%).

The Group's banking facilities are not subject to any covenants.

Trade and other payables

AR A3 16%E657% (— T4 :
6.15% %2 6.48%) °

AEBNRITEELB|ROEE -
24 EBHEARZHREHEMIRER

The Group The Company
AEE KA F]

2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tt Fr T+
Trade payables e B 5 HRIE 97,335 83,347 47,893 48,820
Other creditors and accrued charges — H b fEfBRIE 134,050 110,026 18,556 22,437
231,385 193,373 66,449 71,257
The amount of the Group’s and the Company'’s other creditors and REERANDBEARZR —FEITH
accrued charges expected to be settled after more than one year is EmENEKREREBERER? Al &
$12,362,000 (2007: $13,236,000) and $1,271,000 (2007: $1,383,000) 12,362,0007T (ZZFZF 4 : 13,236,000
respectively. All of the other trade and other payables are expected to ) % 1,271,000 (Z B Z £ &F

be settled within one year.

1,383,0007T) ° FIE EAME Z BN REM
e RIRFERE—F AN -

FEENEERAER R A

—EEN\FER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)
24 Trade and other payables (continued) 24 BEARSREMIER®
The ageing of trade payables as of the balance sheet date is as follows: ENESRBEREER 2RERIT ¢
The Group The Company
rEE EAT
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tt Fr Tt
Due within 1 month or EHALR—EA
on demand R A BN 96,594 81,767 47,629 47,765
Due after 1 month but EHE R —E A%
within 3 months B=MAR 459 535 166 182
Due after 3 months but FHEA=A®%
within 6 months BREARN 199 653 15 636
Due after 6 months E|HAE "7 E A% 83 392 83 237
97,335 83,347 47,893 48,820
25 Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries 25 B BRE £ B} B 2 ) R IR
The amount due from a subsidiary in 2007 was unsecured, interest- RZTZ L FREYHE R RRIE A ER
free and repayable on demand. - BERIZEKRER °
The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured and interest-free. The FETFT B A BERIE AEE A R R 8 o IR
balances included in current liabilities are trade related, repayable under BEEANKEAZESHE AR —@A
normal trade terms and are due within one month at the balance sheet NIRE SIERZ AT - EBRRIEREBAER
date. The balances included in non-current liabilities do not have fixed RRIENHREEEERE - METFER
repayment terms but are not expected to be repayable within one year. —FRZf
26 Employee retirement benefits 26 EEBRHEEFR
(a) Defined benefit retirement plan (a) E%E?E*U?EWE“I'%'J
The Group operates a defined benefit retirement plan which covers REBABHIB% (ZZEZTLF : 21%) 2 &

25% (2007: 21%) of the Group’s employees. The plan is administered by
an independent trustee, with the assets held separately from those of

Bieft \;E%fﬁ?aaf'JL17Fquil o &&TEIJIA—
FBIUERAEE  BAEECEENFH

the Group. The members’ benefits are determined based on the B RE - KERMNIREE 2 &EFH®
employees’ final remuneration and length of service. Contributions to MRISFHE ﬁ%ﬂZF%%’UHEH‘“ #
the plan are made in accordance with the recommendations of an BN IEERMERER]  ZAERTEH A

independent actuary who values the retirement plan at regular intervals.
The latest actuarial valuation in this respect was carried out at
31 December 2007 by qualified staff of Watson Wyatt Hong Kong Limited,
who are members of the Society of Actuaries of Canada, using attained
age method.

For the purposes of preparing these financial statements, an
independent actuarial valuation was also carried out at 31 December
2008 by the above independent actuary following the methodology set
out in HKAS 19, Employee benefits.

RINGTEIEL AT o AT ARt UL {ER 2
BEIHE IR =_EE+F+=-A=1+—H
#17 © AWatson Wyatt Hong Kong
Limited LA 232 SF 80 IE B AN A fEH AE B AT
- HBSBEMEXEEMESNER
H¥xes o

AN - FEEEMRIRE N SRt B ERIZE19
SIEBRAN] ZIER—FENF+_H
=+ —B#ETH—FHE - AR R
W -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

26 Employee retirement benefits (continued) 26 EREHFEF ®
(a) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (a) TEFETAERMKEE &
(i) The amounts recognised in the balance sheets are as follows: (i) REEBBERBRZNAMNT

The Group and the Company

AEEREAT
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
Fr FT
Present value of funded obligations BEREMIRE 82,678 62,731
Fair value of plan assets FTEIERZ ARE (44,833) (54,1006)
Retirement benefit liabilities RARBMNEE 37,845 8,625

LAt A B EFRRHRBE—FRIN -
AT - ARRKEFIE S EIK B 2 B K

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after more
than one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate this amount
from the amounts payable in the next twelve months, as the retirement R BB E 2 RRERER T IREERR
benefit payable to scheme members and future contributions to plan ZARREE) - H T EE BZEREER
assets will also depend on staff turnover and future changes in actuarial R+ {EA 2 ENFREDFREE ©
assumptions.

(ii) Plan assets consist of the following: (i) FTEIEERE
The Group and the Company

AEEREAT
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Mutual fund HRAHES 43,488 16,556
Capital guarantee instruments BARERTE — 6,385
Cash RE 1,345 31,165
44,833 54,106

(iif)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations:

(i) EREMNEEHREED

The Group and the Company

AEBRARD T
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
T T
At 1 January n—HA—B8 62,731 103,566
Benefits paid by the plan T2 2R A (5,175) (53,839)
Current service cost IR B AR 75 AR AR 5,153 6,440
Interest cost F BB A 2,097 3,453
Loss on curtailments and settlements & S BRI — 3,462
Actuarial losses/(gains) BEEE(BF) 17,872 (351)
At 31 December R+=—_B=+—8H 82,678 62,731
EBENEERER AT

—EEN\EER




(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

26

(a)
(iv)

Employee retirement benefits (continued)

Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued)
Movements in plan assets:

B 7% #R R M 5L

(= BERI - GRBEHE)

26 EREBHhE&ER &

(@) TEHEERRAKEE @
(v) GrEIBEZ#E) :
The Group and the Company

REBMEARAT
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
At 1 January ®n—HA—AH 54,106 88,696
Contributions paid to the plan ez
by the employer R 9,981 10,125
Benefits paid by the plan +¥IJ§HZZE7F|J (5,175) (53,839)
Actuarial expected return FEEECRE
on plan assets T8 B [B] 2R 3,692 5,396
Actuarial (losses)/gains B8 (5E) &7 (17,771) 3,728
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8 44,833 54,106

The Group expects to pay $3,860,000 (2007: $7,470,000) in contributions
to the defined benefit retirement plan in the following year.

Expense recognised in consolidated profit or loss is as follows:

EBHETERK— iﬁﬁ,mﬁézﬁuz@?k%
2% 143,860,000 (Z BT+ F
7,4 700007z)f’ﬁ7% AR o

(V) REERERERZEAZIOT ¢

2008 2007

$'000 $'000

Fr Tt

Current service cost I I AR 75 A AR 5,153 6,440

Interest cost A E KA 2,097 3,453
Actuarial expected return ATEIEE

on plan assets 2 15 E TE EA B 7R (3,692) (5,396)
Loss on curtailments and settlements &5 & HA &5 18 — 3,462
Expense charged to consolidated Rira R RER A

profit or loss (note (b)) (B sE6(0) 3,558 7,959
The expense is recognised in the BERAZ TR TIGE

following line items in the Wk N zIBE PR

consolidated income statement:

— Cost of sales — HEKA 45 1,645
— Selling and distribution expenses  — & ko #H 2,028 1,539
— Administrative expenses — ITHAX 1,485 1,313
— Restructuring costs — BHERAX — 3,462

3,558 7,959
Actual return on plan assets — FrEIEECERER —

(losses)/gains (E18) /&7 (14,079) 9,124
The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised directly — (vi)  BEEZERERERZ TREEAMRKEEE
in equity: BB

2008 2007

$'000 $'000

Fr Tt

At 1 January ®n—HA—H (21,828) (25,907)
Amount recognised during the year FAERT R (35,643) 4,079
At 31 December R+ZRA=+—H (57,471) (21,828)

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

26
(a)

(vii)

(b)

(i)

Employee retirement benefits (continued)

Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31 December 2008 are
as follows:

26

(a)
(vii)

B 7% #R R M 55

(FrmEHERIN - BIBERE)

EREFEEF

ERBEARAKETE ()

REZBENF+-—A=+—H " FRAZ
Exﬁ“ﬁ"“ﬁﬂ"l—

The Group and the Company

AEERAKAT
2008 2007
Discount rate AR IR & 1.20% 3.40%
Expected rate of return on plan assets &t £1& & ~ 78 # @ ) & 6.50% 6.50%
Future salary increases KRR © 210N 3.00% 3.00%

The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the portfolio as
a whole and not on the sum of the returns on individual asset categories.
The return is based exclusively on historical returns, without
adjustments.

Historical information

S EIEE > BB R R REEA
BRBES MY« DmETHE -

BEsLEH

The Group and the Company

AEBMRARAF
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$'000 $°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Fr Tt T T Tt
Present value of the defined TEFE 1 A
benefit obligations BEZHRE 82,678 62,731 103,566 96,361 111,997
Fair value of plan assets FEIEEZARE (44,833) (54,106) (88,696) (81,434) (92,736)
Deficit R 37,845 8,625 14,870 14,927 19,261
Experience losses/(gains) on:  # FNAI&IEZ
K EE (BT

— Plan liabilities —tEaE 3,291 (3,475) (900) (2,679) 442
— Plan assets — FrEIEE 17,771 (3,728) (1,156) (8,606) 4,953

Defined contribution retirement plans

Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong not joining the above defined
benefit retirement plan are required to join the Group’s mandatory
provident fund plan under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory provident fund plan is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by an independent corporate
trustee. Under the plan, the Group and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of $20,000.
contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the central
pension scheme operated by the PRC government. The Group is
required to contribute 17.5% to 31% of employees’ remuneration to
the central pension scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
for the Group with respect to the central pension scheme is the required
contribution under the central pension scheme. Contributions to the
plan vest immediately.

(b)
(i)

E BRI E

RBERCGRHIERESFEEH) - A%
B A ML &I A Ll i BRAE AR
W%%HWEE : 257JD)\$%E’\J€§%U’IE’&

T8 RHIERTERA BT —(EmB
l&@y\u%}\”’:@é’]m%ﬁ{ﬁﬁkﬁ17ﬁ+il
REBEBEHHE AKELEREREAM
AHEMEHE T BREREEARAED
5% - & ABBEAEMRS/KF /20,000
TC o HEEEH O ERAERE

TR BARMEE AT BB EENP R
BRINESFTEINKE o AEBAL P RIENR

SETEMRIERBARNREEES - HE
BEEMESMI17.5%E31% - REBHEE
FOIGR RS ET B —RIEBIBEF R
REFEIAERRNBRBER - Bt
M RBNEEERE o

FEENEERAER R A

—EEN\FER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI - RBEERTHE)
27 Income tax in the balance sheet 27 HEEBREMINZFHAER
(@) current tax recoverable in the consolidated balance (a) #HLKE&EEBBEXRAAMIIZATWEZAH
sheet represents: TR
The Group
KEE
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax REERBAEH
for the year ecdic] — (107)
Provisional Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEZESHNEH 101 178
Current tax recoverable A U [B] Z< B A IE 101 71
(b) Deferred tax recognised: (b) ERIBELEHIE:
(i) The Group (i) rEH
The components of deferred tax (assets) and liabilities recognised in RiFABERBRER ZELETE (BE)
the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the year FEBBEZEKBLRERAZEBWNT

are as follows:

Depreciation Impairment
allowances  losses of
in excess receivables Retirement
of related and benefit
depreciation inventories  liabilities  Tax losses Others Total
WERBE EWERE
BRAEH kEEZ REEA

FEZHH HEESE ZB8& HESHE Hitr @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T
Deferred tax arising from: ERHIBERE -
At 1 January 2007 RZEZ+E—HA—H 195,270 (1,098) (3,082) (80,277) (3,158) 107,655
Exchange adjustments EHAR 4,924 (69) — (268) (178) 4,409
(Credited)/charged to consolidated R AEHF
profit or loss (note 8(a)) (GEA) /408 (i E8(a) (52,613) (2,605) 774 (2,587) 1,420 (55,611)
Charged to equity IR MR — — 713 6,794 — 7,507
At 31 December 2007 RZEZ+tF+-A=+—H 147,581 (3,772) (1,595) (76,338) (1,916) 63,960
At 1 January 2008 RZEZENF—HA—H 147,581 (3,772) (1,595) (76,338) (1,916) 63,960
Exchange adjustments TS 4,191 (99) - (20) (117) 3,955
(Credited)/charged to consolidated Rz AEHT
profit or loss (note 8(a)) (G A),/ME (Fi3%8(a) (65,271) 258 — 7,458 (579)  (58,134)
Charged to equity R T Mk - - 155 5,984 - 6,139
At 31 December 2008 RZEENF+ZA=1T—H 86,501 (3,613) (1,440) (62,916) (2,612) 15,920
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

27

(b)
0}

Income tax in the balance sheet (continued)

Deferred tax recognised: (Continued)

The Group (Continued)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following

B B R AR Y R

(FrmEHERIN - BIBERE)

27 BEAGBERMINZHAER®

(b) CERFPELEHER:
(i F&EEGEHE)

(&)

AREE IR TS IH B P 5| B EAER

items: HEEMEER
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Tax losses T8 g8 140,541 115,376
Deductible temporary differences AN EER 56,101 65,608
196,642 180,984

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above
items as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which the
above items can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdictions and entities.

The tax losses can be carried forward up to five years from the year in
which the loss originated, and will expire in the following years:

A AR BEFREE R R BE S0 1S R I AR &2
A ABRINEL RS - SR AR B R FER L5
HEMSIBZELERBEE -

BRANBREBEEEERRRLFE N 5@

AMELIMT

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
T Tt
2008 —TENF — 4,552
2009 —ETNF - =
2010 —E—TF 35,566 34,256
2011 =T 81,135 76,568
2012 B 15,273 —
2013 —T—=fF 8,567 —
140,541 115,376

EBENEERER AT

—EEN\EER




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | BA#&3RZRMI=T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI - RBEERTHE)
27 Income tax in the balance sheet (continued) 27 BEAREMINZEHER®
(b) Deferred tax recognised: (Continued) (b) COERELEBIEE)
(i) The Company (i) NN
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the REEABRERZELHREEEDS X
balance sheet and the movements during the year are as follows: FARZEBEIOT :
Depreciation
allowances
in excess Impairment Retirement
of related losses of benefit
depreciation  receivables liabilities  Tax losses Total
HERHE
BaEE EWEEZ RKEF
FEZ8E REEE =L BEEE @it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
Deferred tax arising from: EERIERE
At 1 January 2007 RZZEZ+E—A—H 129,627 (996) (3,082) (72,857) 52,692
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss RBEF GHA) /K (49,615) (1,042) 774 (3,095) (52,978)
Charged to equity P R B — — 713 — 713
At 31 December 2007 R-ZEZ+&+-A=1—H 80,012 (2,038) (1,595) (75,952) 427
At 1 January 2008 RZZENF—A—H 80,012 (2,038) (1,595) (75,952) 427
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss REEF GIA) Ik (7,699) 180 - 13,079 5,560
Charged to equity Nl — - 155 — 155
At 31 December 2008 R-_BENE+-A=+—H 72,313 (1,858) (1,440) (62,873) 6,142
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHBETRI  IRBEHE
28 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28 BERGEE
(@) The Group (a) AX&EH
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FRRREREAEEDG
Exchange Capital
Share Share Capital fluctuation contribution  Retained Minority Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests equity
EX -2 D

RE  RBEE EARE  RIRE ARG LEER 2% BRRE: REAR
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 §000 §000 §000 $000
iR iR iR T T T T T T

At 1 January 2007 RZZZtE-f-B 186,785 65,739 112970 30,125 — 1542263 1,937,882 36,215 1,974,097
Exchange differences on translation of the financial ~ #EEHEA R BHR

statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong MEEZEHER = - - 16,236 - - 16,236 2,690 18926
Exchange differences on monetary items that form AEARSERKERARZ

part of the net investment in foreign subsidiaries, REMNEREAMELZ

net of tax BREELZE — — — 18,368 — — 18,368 - 18,368
Equity-settled share-based transactions PAR A BERER % - - - - 162 - 162 - 162
Inter-company charge levied by the Ultimate holding ~ SEERAFHEH

company for the stock options BREFMNZER = = = = (162) = (162) = (162)
Actuarial gains and losses of defined benefit ERBHRIRGTE

retirement plan, net of tax Bk RERR - - - - - 3,366 3,366 - 3,366
(Loss)/profit for the year TEE(BR) /&7 — - - - - (262378)  (262376) 2082 (260,94)
At 31 December 2007 RZFZLET-RA=+-H 186,785 65,739 112,970 64,729 — 1283253 1713476 40987 1,754,463
At 1 January 2008 RZZE\5-f-B 186,785 65,739 112,970 64,729 — 1283253 1,713,476 40,987 1,754,463
Exchange differences on translation of the financial BB A R BHE

statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong MELCERZE - - - 12,215 - - 12,215 2,491 14,706
Exchange differences on monetary items that form BEEREERNERARZ

part of the net investment in foreign subsidaries, RENEREAMEL L

net of tax BREERZE - - - 18,607 - - 18,607 - 18,607
Actuarial gains and losses of defined benefit ERBHRINTE

retirement plan, net of tax Bk EERR - - - - —  (35798)  (35798) - (35798)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (B8) /B - - - - —  (257,769)  (257,769) 1743 (256,026)
At 31 December 2008 RZFZNETZA=1-H 186,785 65739 112,970 95,551 — 989,686 1,450,731 45,221 1,495,952

BERENSERER AT

—EEN\FER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)
28 Capital and reserves (Continued) 28 BEREM®
(b) The Company (b) Z&AF
Capital
Share Share contribution Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
B
B R4 RE FON-1 | e 11 “g
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
At 1 January 2007 R-EE+&E—f—H 186,785 65,739 — 1,585,174 1,837,698
Equity-settled share-based VAR BETEH
transactions %A — — 162 — 162
Inter-company charge levied by the  RAERAREHR L
ultimate holding company for fE R AT IR
the stock options ZEH — — (162) — (162)
Actuarial gains and losses of defined  E B @FIE G212
benefit retirement plan, net of tax REEE — — — 3,366 3,366
Loss for the year (note 11) AEEZEE (1) = = — (273,809) (273,809)
At 31 December 2007 RZZEELE+-_A=1+—H 186,785 65,739 = 1,314,731 1,567,255
At 1 January 2008 RZZENE—H—H 186,785 65,739 - 1,314,731 1,567,255
Actuarial gains and losses of defined & @ FIE Kt
benefit retirement plan, net of tax HRBERERE — — — (35,798) (35,798)
Loss for the year (note 11) AEF BB (HRaE11) — — — (191,262) (191,262)
At 31 December 2008 RZZZEN\E+ZA=+T—H 186,785 65,739 — 1,087,671 1,340,195
(c) Share capital (c) E=x
The Company
¥ NN
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Authorised: VEERRA ¢
400,000,000 ordinary 400,000,000% & f% H 18
shares of $0.50 each 0.507T 2 & B AR 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BT RARIRA
373,570,560 ordinary 373,570,5600% & & E &
shares of $0.50 each 0.507T 2 & B A% 186,785 186,785
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as LTEBREAEABRRRMARERARE
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at WAIEARBIAE LEFE —RkmHig—
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard E o HRARRNFIHREE - A TR
to the Company'’s residual assets. HEERSER -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

28

(d)
(M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(e)

()

Capital and reserves (Continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by Section
48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the reserve arising from the capitalisation
of retained profits of a PRC subsidiary.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and the foreign exchange differences
arising from translation of monetary items that in substance form part
of the net investment in subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(t).

Capital contribution reserve

The capital contribution reserve represents the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised stock options granted to the
Company'’s employees by the ultimate holding company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 1(p)(iii).

Distributability of reserves

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2008
were $1,087,671,000 (2007: $1,314,731,000).

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose the
Group defines debt as total bank loans.

During 2008, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from 2007,
was to maintain the debt-to-equity ratio in the range 5% to 15%. In
order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

28

(d)
)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(e)

()

B B R AR Y R

(B BEERI - HERAESE)
B B o R ()
REEER AR

B4 5

FER KM BEEBERIDZEB(ARIEN) S
ASBIKFTESE o

BEXRRE

BERRENIE-—HTRENBRRZRER
MERCTELE 2 #

ER KB EE

B RE AR ERAREREUINZ B
RNEIMTERREL Z A E S 253 KRR
HE¥IEE (BRI BRIMNEHE R R
ZHFRE) ZCERER - ZREREME
MBI Z &t BERMEHE

N ONC

B R T A 2 AR AR BT R 1 p i) P A A
Bt A B B ST A PR AN B & 5t ISR R
R RRERABR T AR EE M HA
Eﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁ%ﬂ&%ﬁ’ﬂ%f%iﬂﬁﬁﬁk BHRR(E

pkfEE
ARARR_ZEZENE+_A=+—HBHzA
5k 7 #5 41,087,671,0007C (ZEE A
£ :1,314,731,0007T) ©

ExER
AEEEREANTIZARERREEE
REFHER R - (EMARRBRIZHE R
RABEMFNEHRIEE + ARBRKFAE
WREMTE ARBRESSENRE
B e

REBRG N EHHEARRBRA RN R
B - AR SRIRERIEN T AT HEE
ZE @ IEEKF ER G 0 E AR R
B8RRI 2 ARG T - I FEER
ENE(CHERRBIELAE -

AEBUERFRBL R BEMREREE
ARIRME - EATTERMER —2 - AAEE
B AEEERFEERGIRITER -

RZZTN\F - NEEZ KB EEFEAR
FABELLRNE%E 15%EE A - R
—ETLFHER - AT H#FRABEZL
Z EEREABRNTRRZBLESLSE -
BT - REEAGBIRE - FEaEst
EBENRKER -

FEENEERAER R A
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28 cCapital and reserves (Continued) 28 BER iR @
(f) Capital management (Continued) f) BEXEE®B
The debt-to-equity ratio at 31 December 2008 and 2007 was as follows: RZZEEL R _FENF+_A=+—H
ZERFEELEROT ¢
The Group The Company
rEE ¥ NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Bank loans (unsecured) RITER (EEM) 186,146 193,780 — 95,000
Equity Em 1,495,952 1,754,463 1,340,195 1,567,255
Debt-to-equity ratio BERNFAEELX 12% 1% N/ATER 6%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally

AR RISALATH B 2 B B X HISMEE AR

imposed capital requirements. EK o
29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 SeMEREERAAEE
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in REBE—REBBRREERSE - R
the normal course of the Group'’s business. The Group’s exposure to Bd - MR R INER o 285 B
these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices ZERBEERANEEMRAEEZER
used by the Group to manage these risks are described below. % 2 AT ERIR RIS - SR o
(a) Credit risk (@) EBRBR
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other AEBNEEERBREERAEKRE S NE
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure HhERIE o ﬁi@@JﬁﬁEﬂ(%ﬁ - mBgRE

to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

Credit limit is offered to customers following financial assessment and
an established payment record. General credit period is payment by
the end of the month following the month in which sales took place.
Security in the form of mortgages, cash deposits or bank guarantees is
obtained from certain customers. Customers who are considered to
have higher credit risk trade on a cash basis. Credit control staff monitor
trade receivables and follow up collections.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. At the balance sheet date, 17% (2007
9%) and 41% (2007: 33%) of the total trade and other receivables was
due from the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any
collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of each financial
asset in the balance sheet after deducting any impairment allowance.
The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose the
Group or the Company to credit risk.

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are placed with financial
institutions with sound credit ratings, and the management consider

BERZEEERR -

EERBINETHBHEREENERZ
TN RREERMERE - —REENRHE A
NIRM A M AR - REBGHERLL
EPBMGIRE - RITHFRRRITERIER
ER - ER/EFBEREERER - RIX
RegTRS - FREERABRSERREK
B 5 A K R WK

A (EERE B RS HIEE
B NEEE  17%(CEELE  9%)
B41% (= BB : 33%) EKE SR
BB A BIREARERAES RAA
B o

BAGERRCEREERBERAZTER
BEMKREE R ERERTEEBE
RY) 5%k o AR E I EREEHEMER
i = B R

AEBENE S MERIREIA R ZFHAE
RAFRRFOSREEE - At - TEER

the Group's exposure to credit risk is low. AASERENEARK AR -
The Group's exposures to the credit risk and its policies for managing REBAZNEERREEEERRE -

such risk were unchanged from 2007.
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29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £RERRTERAAEE®
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (b) RBELER
Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their $%@W%J%%E‘%§ZEE\EE$%E’UE
own cash management, including the short term investment of cash AR e BREREIRE - A
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, Ft)\é KM TBEIR S FH K \Ehﬁ
subject to approval by the parent company’s board when the borrowings BB AE TEEAKYE - QIAES
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is BRI - $%@2E&ﬁﬁﬁmﬂﬂéﬁ%‘ﬁ
to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains MBESHE  UEREERAVZES
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding RERETZENBEEAGRRHEEHNES
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in HE UWnhtEEHERAZRDESS
the short and longer term. The Group'’s exposures to the liquidity risk Ko AEBZ RHE SRR MPCRE-F
and its policies for managing such risk were unchanged from 2007. TEFHER -
The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the TREAEBRARANGEE AV FEE
balance sheet date of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities, 2 MERE 48 EEWE%?’%E%*E » WIARTHIAR
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including MERE BRRBETNEERAE ZF 8
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based S s IR EAER }z:zi**” Bl Bl Z
on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the BEGEZHNES L) RAEEEKRRD
Group and the Company can be required to pay: AWBRZ &xFENRA %ﬁf’ﬁﬁ’;ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ °
The Group AEH
2008 2007
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
BHNLERER BHERBR
MWEESHE HRERE
Total- Balance Total- Balance
Within sheet Within sheet
1 year or carrying 1 year or carrying
on demand amount on demand amount
—ERx BE —F Ak BE
BEBNE =N BB BER
AHBE REHE i REE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Bank loans (unsecured) MITER (RIEH) 196,291 186,146 204,748 193,780
Trade and other payables ERESRHEMmERE 231,385 231,385 193,373 193,373
Amounts due to holding companies EAERARR
and fellow subsidiaries 6 A Bff B 2 R BR 38 6,457 6,457 19,110 19,110
434,133 423,988 417,231 406,263
BBE NG BEAR A A

—EEN\FER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £REBEERERAAREE®

(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RBESERE
The Company AT
2008 2007
Contractual undiscounted Contractual undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
EHLRBRNELTE ANLREENESTE
More than Balance More than Balance
Within 1 year but sheet Within-~ 1 year but sheet
1yearor less than carrying  1yearor  lessthan carrying
ondemand 2 years Total  amount ondemand 2years Total  amount
-Ep  #B-% &E -ER BB-F BE
RE BHR BEx Sk BR Bf%
BARYH = ag FEE AARIE —F 8% REE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
n n r n I I S T
Bank loans (unsecured) RAER (BER) - - - — 100187 — 100187 95000
Trade and other payables EffE5RAMEE 66,449 — 66449 66,449 71,257 - 71,257 71,257
Amounts due to holding companies  ERERATR
and fellow subsidiaries RAZKBLAREE 558 - 558 558 17,823 — 17,823 17823
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHBARES 13540 355622 369,162 369,162 290 3T 30238 380,238
80,547 355,622 436,169 436,169 191,758 371741 569,505 564,318
(c) Interest rate risk () FI=EREk
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from short-term bank AEEFIRREREZHERRITERE
loans. Bank loans issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash Ao $‘$lﬁﬁ7¥<xﬂﬁfﬂémﬂ’:ﬂ TP NE]
flow interest rate risk. TRFEEITERK »
(i) Interest rate profile (i) M2 B
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group's and TRARNEBRARGBIREER ZRTT
the Company’s bank loans at the balance sheet date: 2R R
The Group
AEE
2008 2007
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BRFE $'000 B RRF R $'000
% Frx % Tt
Variable rate borrowings: FENFIRE K
— Bank loans (unsecured) — ROTEHR (EEM) 5.45 186,146 5.66 193,780

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

29

(c)
0}

(ii)

(d)

Financial risk management and fair values 29
(Continued)

B B R AR Y R

(FrmEHERIN - BIBERE)

ERHEABRERBRAOAEE®

Interest rate risk (Continued) () F=REE®
Interest rate profile (Continued) (i) F=EEE (B)
The Company
KA F]
2008 2007
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BRAE $'000 BERA = $'000
% Fr % Tt
Variable rate borrowings: ;‘%@J?’F‘@%
— Bank loans (unsecured) — RITE R (EEH) — — 5.46 95,000
Sensitivity analysis (i) BREDN

At 31 December 2008, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease
of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would increase/decrease the Group's loss after tax and
decrease/increase retained profits both by approximately $1,861,000
(2007: $1,525,000). The 100 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the next annual balance sheet date.

The impact on the Group's loss after tax and retained profits is estimated
as an annualised impact on interest expense of such a change in interest
rates on the financial instruments held by the Group at the balance
sheet date, assuming the bank loans will be rolled over at maturity
until the next annual reporting date. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2007.

currency risk (d)

The Group is exposed to currency risks primarily through sales,
purchases and borrowings which give rise to receivables, payables,
bank loans and cash balances that are denominated in a foreign
currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise
to this risk are primarily United States dollars, Euros and Australian
dollars.

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollars, all
sales and purchases are denominated in either Hong Kong dollars or
United States dollars, except for certain purchases from Europe or
Australia. Given the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States
dollar, management does not expect that there will be any significant
currency risk associated with such United States dollars denominated
transactions. For transactions denominated in Euros and Australian
dollars, since the volume of such transactions is not significant,
management considers the exposure to currency risk to be low.

RZZTZNF+_A=+—8 ' HarF=

L%/TE&E AT EEMAEFHEE
RETEHNBRT  REBAFERE
& EREE IR &Mﬁzﬁﬁ%ﬁhﬁ L/
41,861,000 (ZFEZF L &F

1,525,0007T) ° *E%’?E’]Lﬂjﬂ—ﬁ%ﬁ
%ﬁi@@%ﬁﬁéﬁé?—iﬁéﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ%
BENR AR TE o

HAREENEEREERENTZER AR
REAAKBERENERTARFNSEE)
ﬁﬁéiﬁ’ﬂ%‘l%&ﬁ%%%’ﬂﬁﬁ WRH
RITEFREPABRER - B2 T—@
iE%%CEI s TR EFERUR—EES
#r e

S BE L B

AEEETEREBER S RIRITEREE
SNEE (BBt 2R 5 1 & WIERBERE 2
REE®) REM 2 FEIERK - EERFN -
fﬁmﬁm&fﬁﬁ 17 - A i [ E HNE R

o SIBUNERBR e B EEBIEET
@%ﬁ&&%n °

HREBANBTIENREERNSEE
8 - BRI L E G A BUNSORME TR
5 - TR HE MBEEHIAETTHETTER
HEW o EHEA}%TEE‘@%T_E%E’] E&$%@

FLA@E&EI?E.#{TZ 25 EEEALAEZ%
ERAENRZENS  HAKERRA
EHNBRIMNERR A o

FEENEERAER R A
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)
29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 &£RERBEERLAALEE®
(Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) PERE (&)
For group entities whose functional currency is Renminbi, except for HREERNUARKIEDEEBNSEE
sales made to group entities and certain borrowings (from group entities B RTHSEEREE RBHER RS
and banks) that are denominated in Hong Kong dollars or United States Bk iR1T1815) R AB T ETTIEEN -
dollars, most of other transactions are denominated in Renminbi. Given E’r@ﬁé%xsu/\ﬁﬁ%{”ﬁﬁﬁ o HRITEAR
the planned re-opening of the Yuen Long production plant in 2009, the BER 2T NFEH EREEEHSE
management expects that sales from group entities in the PRC to AERR Bl SHE B B BRI %Aji"PETIgdi '
entities in Hong Kong will be reduced significantly and the currency FEFE BRI FNE RV 7R A iy TB& o ¥TETTk
risk associated with such sales transactions will be reduced accordingly. BILER  BREESTHEDLRS X
For borrowings denominated in United States dollars or Hong Kong TTRB T, NREERTF R AL ER -
dollars, the management reviews the exposure regularly and may ZEUAARBEREENR -
consider replacing them with Renminbi borrowings if the movement in
exchange rate of Renminbi against the United States dollars or Hong
Kong dollars became unfavourable to the Group.
The Group's exposure to currency risk and its policies for managing REERZINER M EEBERE-T
such risk were unchanged from 2007. ZHFHER -
(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) AZ 2 INE R
The following table details the Group’s and the Company'’s significant TREAREERARRINEEE BIIELAME
exposure at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising from ﬁﬁa%ﬁ%%‘ﬁﬁ%uﬂﬁé’leﬁ REENAE
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than P 2 SMNERBRIEH FA DT o TR
the functional currency of the entity to which they relate. The exposure BIESERNE LB A RED AR (GZE
arising from the borrowings from group entities that in substance form REB AR B RN FREN—I
part of the net investment in subsidiaries is excluded. For presentation M) MEEANRR - TRNESBNIRER
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars, AZEXRFRAEBEZN A - HER
translated using the spot rates at the balance sheet date. Differences BBINGB A R 2 R BASER
resulting from the translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries 2IEEMEENEZRBIETBIEERA -
outside Hong Kong into the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.
The Group AEE
2008 2007
United Hong United Hong
States Kong States Kong
dollars dollars dollars dollars
EH BT X BT
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr FT Ft
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 K H h AR 18 1,580 — 1,785 —
Amounts due from holding companies /& ¥ A &) &
and fellow subsidiaries B R B A R ARIE 9,087 13,540 6,889 3,548
Cash and cash equivalents HekERBEEIER 67,403 1,735 119,789 1,412
Bank loans (unsecured) HRITE R (EE ) (50,375) — (50,715) —
Trade and other payables EWE 5 & B AR 1E (3,301) — (380) =
Amounts due to holding companies FEMIERR A B K&
and fellow subsidiaries B RKBAFERE (5,125) (4,558) (16,371) (@339
Net exposure [\ e 7 Y S 5 19,269 10,717 60,997 1,621

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  ARBEHE)
29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 2BMEARETERAABEE®
(Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) ERRE @
(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) AZZHERK (B)
The Company ARTH
2008 2007
United United
States States
dollars dollars
$'000 $'000
EYH =
Fr Tt
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 & E i BRIE 1,471 1,646
Amounts due from holding companies FEWIERR A B K2
and fellow subsidiaries H%f‘ﬁ% AIARIA 2,906 70
Cash and cash equivalents RekERREIER 157 2,283
Trade and other payables FEWE 5 K E i BR1E (3,301) (380)
Amounts due to holding companies FEWIERR A 7l R
and fellow subsidiaries H%[‘ﬁ% AIARIA (556) (15,542)
Net exposure [ B A HE VSRR 677 (11,923)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (i) SBRMEDH
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's TREREENEEBRAS KRR
loss after tax and retained profits that would arise if foreign exchange SNESTE RN & B 2 B ¥ A B 2 FiigE1E
rates to which the group entities have significant exposure at the &H&Zﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁZEﬂﬁ%% ERFRE AR
balance sheet date had changed at that date, assuming all other risk & FHNE - BT BERZBTRET
variables remained constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the 2R BERRR ETNZE T EME
pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollars and the United States e BEEHFZE -

dollars would be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in
value of the United States dollars against other currencies.

2008 2007

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) Increase/ Increase/ (decrease)  Increase/  Increase/
in foreign (decrease) (decrease) inforeign (decrease) (decrease)
exchange in loss in retained  exchange inloss in retained
rates  after tax profits rates after tax profits
HNEER BREg  hERE  IEEX BRiie  WafEE
t#/ EBEEm #m/ R/ EEEn/ #m/
(F &) (A2 (H2) (T%) (&) (&)

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Tr Tr Fr Fr

United States dollars I 5% (1,552) 1,552 5% (3,676) 3,676
(5)% 1,552 (1,552) (5)% 3,676 (3,676)

Hong Kong dollars BT 5% (374) 374 5% (27) 27
(5)% 374 (374) (5)% 27 (27)

FEENEERAER R A
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29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 2BEARETERAAMEE®
(Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) PERE (&)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (i) HBEDW(E)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an ERMEZANZ HTEREBEAEE S EE S
aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the group entities’ ERITHEER G E (REMER @ 1%
profit or loss measured in the respective functional currencies, HEAZEXZBABT) 2AFEER
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the ZENERE R 2 o
balance sheet date for presentation purposes.
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange BRRMEDHTE RERINEE R 7 EBE AR
rates had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held i%ﬁ?;$%lﬁﬁ%*ﬁlﬂﬁi EREFIN-S
by the Group which expose the Group to currency risk at the balance EEE/INERR s SRTE  BEEER
sheet date, including inter-company payables and receivables within AN 3EME TSR E T 2 ThEE BB EB LA fE
the Group which are denominated in a currency other than the WRERMER - WESHREREEEHEHE
functional currency of the lender or the borrower. The stated changes T—FEHLFEHNERA NS IET
represent management'’s assessment of reasonably possible changes & o AT EREBEBUINGB AR Z
in foreign exchange rates over the period until the next annual balance ISR E AR S IZE?'JfMﬁﬁFE
sheet date. The analysis excludes differences that would result from AR ZENMEE _TTLFIERZ
the translation of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside Hong BAEHELT o
Kong into the Group's presentation currency. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2007.
(e) Fair value (e) 2AREHE
The non-trade balances with holding companies and fellow subsidiaries AR N Bl R [F R B A R M IE R 5 KA
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. Given S RERRRSE BERFEE - &
these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose their fair values. RZEFERR  MBEBEEARABZEET
* o
All other significant financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts Fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé?{%ﬁﬂéﬁ?&%@ RIREEE
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2008 HEER-_ZTNFR-_ZZTLF TR
and 2007. =t AN AREETEERESR o
30 Commitments 30 #*iE
(a) capital commitments outstanding at (@) R=-EENF+ZA=+—H Xk
31 December 2008 not provided for in the financial EMBHBERRPBEZIRTEREAE
statements were as follows: HEWT
The Group The Company
AEE NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tt Fr Tt
Contracted for SIS 38,403 122,684 423 413
Authorised but not contracted for EREBRETA 1,725 2,034 1,362 2,557
40,128 124,718 1,785 2,970

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
Annual Report 2008




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

30
(b)

commitments (Continued)

At 31 December 2008, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases

B B R AR Y R

(FrmEHERIN - BIBERE)

30 &iEH

() R=-ZFFENF+-ZA=+—H ' #
BRAHEKSEEE RN ZARR

were payable as follows: BREBEERENT :
The Group The Company
rEH PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $°'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T Fr Tt
Land and buildings TR E
Within 1 year —FR 242 1,543 — 19
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA — 118 — —
___________________________________ 22 o
Plant and machinery Vil
Within 1 year —FR 159 — — —
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA 450 — — —
___________________________________ 609 @ o oo
851 1,661 — 19

The Group, as lessee, leases a number of properties and items of
machinery and equipment under operating leases. The leases typically
run for an initial period of two years with an option to renew the lease
when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

AEBERFABARBEEMEMHES
BEEANBER#RER - ZFHE—
RUIZREME - WA FEEEERHA
REH  ESAERIETEREE - &
BEREHEY TEEXAES -

FEENEERAER R A
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31 Material related party transactions 31 EXREAELXS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in BB BHR A ERE 2R 5 REHIN -
these financial statements, the Group entered into the following material AEBEFTYUTEABEALRS
related party transactions:
(@) Transactions with group companies (a) HKEARAFZEERS
Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
8 B/ () ER&ER
2008 2007 2008 2007
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Py = Tr T Tr T

Purchases from e (i)

— ultimate holding company — RIEERRA 3,906 2,387 (1,197) (424)

— fellow subsidiaries — RZMBAR 20,906 35,262 (642) (17,858)

Sales to =Sl (i)

— intermediate holding company — RANERAE 914 4,331 — —

— fellow subsidiaries — RARRBEAA 31 15 1,462 2

Royalty payments to THEFIEER (i

— intermediate holding companies ~ — N R A A 4,152 4,421 (3,908) (828)

— a related party —BEAT 1,905 1,743 (1,928) (1,779)

Engineering design fee to YR TRREER

— a fellow subsidiary — RAZKBAR (i) 1,151 43 (681) -

Notes: FizE

(i) Sales to and purchases from group companies were carried out at terms (i) ERHGRET BB ZIETET - B
mutually agreed by both parties. The terms of the outstanding balances A H R 2 AR T sE21A 51 B o
are set out in note 21.

(i) Rovyalty is payable to intermediate holding companies and a related party (i) ERERERERSFS RG]
for the use of certain trademarks pursuant to relevant licensing FAFEMNEEZATFRNIERRAF R
agreements. —BEATHER -

(iii) Engineering design service was provided by a related party in respect (iif) TRRBRFAEBRDRRRKBA R ZEE
of a subsidiary’s brewery expansion plan. BERET & —EALTIRM -

These transactions also constitute connected transactions under the BB ETHRA - hERXFEKEERS ©

Listing Rules.

(b) Other transactions with group companies (b) HKERHMEERS
Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
k. ] B/ () FEER
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FTr T Fr Tt
Expenses paid by the Group on HASEREEAQR
behalf of group companies RXEH
— ultimate holding company — RRERAT 2,802 3,386 1,458 42
— intermediate holding company — RN ERAT 304 2,303 6,185 6,825
— fellow subsidiaries — REWBAA 280 598 27 —
Expenses paid by group companies HEEARRAEE
on the Group's behalf REEHA
— ultimate holding company — REER AT 1,370 8,722 — —
— intermediate holding company — RN ERAR 482 1,394 — —
— fellow subsidiaries — RAZRMERR 430 190 (29) —

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(c)

32

33

34

B B R AR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBAHERI - DB E)
Material related party transactions (continued) 31 EXREAELZS @
Key management personnel remuneration (c) XEEBEAEMS
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including AEEETEEEAB S (BIEMFEORT
amounts paid to the Company'’s directors as disclosed in note 9 and BB AR R REF N 2 58 MM FE10PT
the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 10, is as follow: BERE TR ES XN ZHIE) M
T
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
Fr Tz
Short-term employee benefits HHES A 13,033 15,047
Post-employment benefits BB 12 12 7 723 1,650
Termination benefits R EEREF 575 —
Equity compensation benefits A& A% (E 1 A — 162
14,331 16,859
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 6(b)). 4 Eﬂ)i SEEATETHMI A (R
6(b)) °
contingent liabilities 32 HRAR
As at 31 December 2008, there was a contingent liability in respect of a RZZZENFE+_A=+—0H  KRFF
guarantee given to a bank by the Company to secure a banking facility R — F‘ﬁfﬁfﬂ’ﬁﬂjﬁ%uﬁ Fe bt &
made available to a subsidiary which expires on 15 January 2009. THXH%ETTP S MEERNABE - ZIE
RN ZZFEZNF—A+HBEIH-
As at the balance sheet date, the Directors do not consider it probable REER  EE=R Z%?M%*17?<ﬁﬁﬁ$
that a claim will be made against the Company under the guarantee. Tﬁ)ﬂzﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁéﬁik c REEEBHAR
The maximum liability of the Company at the balance sheet date under EHER THERABEAZMIBA Tibﬁﬁ
the guarantee issued is the facility drawn down by the subsidiary of ZER{EE 186,146,000t (ZZEZ L :
$186,146,000 (2007: $98,780,000). 98,780,0007T) °
The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect of EZE RO AR EEERERTE - BEX
the guarantee as its fair value cannot be reliably measured and its SERAZTIT(ZEELF  T) - AR
transaction price was $Nil (2007: $Nil). 7] AR R A B AR ERERA
Non-adjusting post balance sheet events 33 FRERHEH &EIE
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group restarted the REERE  AEBR-_ZFTNFHRAE
production of the Yuen Long plant in April 2009. The management A TR MR A A E o Aii!iﬁi‘ﬁﬁlé
estimates the one-off expenses incurred for the re-opening of the Yuen FTBABEMRMmS B —REZEHLN R
Long plant to be approximately $2,000,000. 2,000,0007T °
Comparative figures 34 HER#F
Net foreign exchange gain of $3,063,000 included in “Other operating  (a) RZEZ L FPBHRET [HagEms]
expenses” in the 2007 financial statements has been reclassified to BIFERYFINGE W ¥ 2 BH3,063,0007T 4 &=
“Other net expenses” in order to conform with current year’s NEE [RMFERL) A AERE S D
classification. BAHR e
Loss on disposal of tangible assets of $3,897,000 included in (b REIZETLFUBRETF [1TBHAS] 821
“Administrative expenses” in the 2007 financial statements has been MHEFFEEZE1E3,897,0007CHH E D
reclassified to “Other net expenses” in order to conform with current B [ FERY A ARERE > HE
year's classification. A e
Trade discounts payable of $30,447,000 included in “Trade and other  (c) RZZEZLFYBRRFPEUESRE
receivables” in the 2007 financial statements has been reclassified to MERIE | BEMNENESZTHRESEE
“Trade and other payables” in order to conform with current year's [EHESREMERE|INFEREEZD
classification. BH R e
Impairment losses for fixed assets of $17,750,000 and other tangible  (d) R FHBEHRERTP [HagEm]

assets of $1,911,000 included in “Other operating expenses” and
“Administrative expenses” respectively in the 2007 financial statements
have been reclassified to “Impairment losses of non-current assets”
and separately shown in the consolidation income statement to conform
with current year’s presentation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R AR Y RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI - RBEERTHE)

35 Immediate and ultimate controlling party 35 HERSHRRERLT
At 31 December 2008, the Directors consider the immediate parent RZZTZNF+ZA=+—H EERAE
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Neptunia Corporation AEBHNEEZETR R RREZEZER AT DR
Limited and San Miguel Corporation respectively. Neptunia Corporation B ABR AR RAENBAFR] o SLimFl
Limited is incorporated in Hong Kong while San Miguel Corporation is BR A AR ES M A8 R F A
incorporated in the Republic of the Philippines. San Miguel Corporation RIERE HFBEMAK L o £ B ARR
produces financial statements available for public use. I BMER T ARG ©

36 Accounting estimates and judgements 36 ErHEERAIER
Apart from assumptions relating to non-current assets impairment and BRIAMIEES ~ 7~ 16226 B ERIERBNE
retirement benefit liabilities set out in notes 5, 7, 16 and 26, the Group EREMERENEEZREN  NEE
believes the following critical accounting policies also involve significant EERRET FRETE - LT ARSI
estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial EWINVE Y- DS
statements.

(@) Impairment of fixed assets, intangible assets, other (a) EEE&E - - EFEE - HttAFE
tangible assets and goodwill ERBEZREE
If the circumstances indicate that the carrying values of these assets MEBERETRZEEEA AN - &
may not be recoverable, the assets may be considered “impaired” and EfRHERIERE] iR ESE:
an impairment loss may be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 AERIFE 365 [ EERE] ERREEBE - 1B
Impairment of assets. Under HKAS 36, these assets are tested for BRBGTERFEIH ZEEENREY
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that SRR BN AR 8k 2 FREE Al g A%
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such a Wl - BIZEHEITRERR - REREH
decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable IR - BREEEHRETRESRE - 7]
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price WEeREAFHEERFREBMRENR
and the value in use. In determining the value in use, expected cash mE o REEEREEREEMEEZTE
flows generated by the asset are discounted to their present value, HIRERENABREERE - LBEHE
which requires significant judgement relating to level of sale volume, HAiHE EERKENASBIEEERH
selling prices and amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily o AEBERFTA N AERAEER E
available information in determining an amount that is a reasonable WEBHEENE @ SEREHEE 52
approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates based on RGBT 2 AR R AT RE
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of sale TEAl o AT - BRHE - SEREEKAN
volume, selling prices and amount of operating costs. However, actual AIREARINRER - WAl e BE T EEE
sale volume, selling prices and operating costs may be different from WEREEFELNEANAE -
assumptions which may result in a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of the assets affected.

(b) Depreciation of fixed assets (b) EEEEZITE
Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated EEEERT RAMERSKERE(WE)
useful lives, after taking into account the estimated residual values, if any. % EE(AFT A EAFRIZEGEIE -
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives and the estimated residual NG B T B & E A (S ET L 65 AR R A
values, if any, of the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of FIRIREE (INE) ELRE - EERR
depreciation expense to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful SHARMARENTERSY - AJEAFR
lives and residual values are based on the Group’s historical experience RESEBEDREAEBEHEUEENR
with similar assets and taking into account anticipated technological ALBREBIFIMHIERSEMIED
changes. The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if there BB ET A EAME - RAREAEAIT
are significant changes from previous estimates. ERYATRE-

(c) Amortisation of other tangible assets (c) HttBEREEMNEE

Other tangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated residual
values. The Group reviews the estimated useful lives and estimated
residual values of the assets regularly in order to determine the amount
of amortisation charge to be recorded during any reporting period. The
useful lives and residual values are based on the Group's historical
experience with similar assets. The amortisation charge for future
periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

36
(d)

(e)

()

37

Accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Impairment loss for doubtful debts

The Group maintains an allowance for doubtful debts for estimated
losses resulting from the inability of the debtors to make required
payments. The Group bases the estimates of future cash flows on the
ageing of the trade receivable balance, debtors’ credit-worthiness, and
historical write-off experience. If the financial condition of the debtors
were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than estimated.

Write down of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts of
inventories with reference to aged inventories analysis, expected future
consumption and management judgement. Based on this review, write
down of inventories will be made when the estimated net realisable
value of inventories decline below the carrying amount. However, actual
consumption may be different from estimation and profit or loss could
be affected by differences in this estimation.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Intangible assets are not amortised as their useful lives are assessed
to be indefinite. The conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset
is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment.
The Group may need to amortise intangible assets in future periods or
recognise impairment losses on intangible assets if events and
circumstances indicate that the useful life is not indefinite.

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2008

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2008 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments, new standards and new interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to result in a restatement of the
Group's or the Company’s results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the following developments are expected to result in
amended disclosures in the financial statements, including restatement
of comparative amount in the first period of adoption:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKFRS 8, Operating segments 1 January 2009
HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation
of financial statements 1 January 2009

HKAS 23 (revised 2008), Borrowing costs 1 January 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of San Miguel
Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 57 to 123,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31
December 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of recognised income and expense and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT | B E ML

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2008 and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

/ﬂw?

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY | EFRBEEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABHEE)
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T Tt Tt Tt
Results XE
Turnover B 753,375 754,833 826,817 806,909 777,830
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrFipT (B518) /& F (314,185)  (315,814)  (112,871) (58,293) 15,536
Income tax credit/(charge) TR A (30kR) 58,159 55,520 6,549 (7,113) (3,032)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BER) BT (256,026)  (260,294)  (106,322) (65,4006) 12,504
Attributable to: MG
— Equity shareholders — KRR AR
of the Company BB A (257,769)  (262,376) (70,144) (35,010) 11,270
— Minority interests — LR R = 1,743 2,082 (36,178) (30,396) 1,234
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BER) BT (256,026)  (260,294)  (106,322) (65,4006) 12,504
(Loss)/earnings per share Tk (F518) /& F
— Basic (cents) — EAR () (69) (70) (19) ©9) 3
Cash dividends per share (cents) BB SR (L) — = = 1 1
Assets and liabilities EEHRERS
Fixed assets EE & E 1,379,561 1,496,910 1,769,377 1,838,164 1,939,135
Intangible assets B L E 28,722 39,643 39,564 39,525 39,481
Goodwill EES — 5,044 5,044 5,044 5,044
Other financial assets Hm s EE — — — — 22,287
Other tangible assets (Note) EaREE M) 41,192 53,164 49,000 41,539 —
Net current assets mEVEEFE 100,242 232,287 328,637 360,852 478,497
Total assets less 488 RO ED
current liabilities =5 1,549,717 1,827,048 2,191,622 2,285,124 2,484,444
Long term bank loans REFIRITE K
(unsecured) (445 3) — — (95,000) (95,000)  (195,000)
Leased factory THE RSB 4 E
maintenance provision B — — — — (47,968)
Retirement benefit liabilities RINEFBE (37,845) (8,625) (14,870) (14,927) (19,261)
Deferred tax liabilities EFEFIE (15,920) (63,960)  (107,655)  (113,124)  (104,563)
Net assets BEFE 1,495,952 1,754,463 1,974,097 2,062,073 2,117,652
EBENEERER AT
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People are our most
important asset and

are critical to the long term
performance of the
Company in achieving its
objective in a highly
competitive marketplace.
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY | EFRBEEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABHEE)
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T Tt Tt T
Capital and reserves BAR#E
Share capital A% 72X 186,785 186,785 186,785 186,785 186,785
Reserves s 1,263,946 1,526,691 1,751,097 1,804,924 1,832,316
Total equity attributable R AR
to equity shareholders BEA
of the Company (GRS 1,450,731 1,713,476 1,937,882 1,991,709 2,019,101
Minority interests VeI RS 45,221 40,987 36,215 70,364 98,551
Total equity EREE 1,495,952 1,754,463 1,974,097 2,062,073 2,117,652

Note:  Other tangible assets represent bottles and crates of the PRC subsidiaries. In
2004, all bottles and crates were included in inventories.
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